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Financial Highlights B1 it &

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
BE-Z—=fF HE_T——F
+=A=+-—H +=—A=+—H
IHFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Turnover =E 301 232,383 206,176
Profit from operations ped ey 91,792 74,922
Profit for the year REERF 80,177 70,065
Profit attributable to: BT AT RERRT
Equity shareholders of the Company AATIRERE A 80,262 70,065
Non-controlling interest IR e (85) -
Total assets EEHALE 615,973 575,598
Net assets EEFE 358,970 340,806
Dividend per share (HK cents) SRRE GEAL)
Interim FHEARR B 3.3 2.8
Proposed final IR < BARR B, 6.9 6.1
Earnings per share (HK cents) SRBF GBAL)
Basic FHR 10.4 9.1
Diluted BE 10.2 9.0
Financial ratios B =R
Net profit margin (Note 1) Fm MKt 34.5% 34.0%
Effective tax rate (Note 2) BEBR(A72) 15.0% 13.2%
Current ratio (Note 3) TMENLL R (B7E3) 1.82 1.83
Quick ratio (Note 4) mENL KR (B ET4) 1.82 1.83
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As at As at
31 December 31 December
2012 2011

R=B——F RZE—F
+=A=+—H +-A=1+—H

'000 ‘000
FR TR
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares ERTRBZEER
As at 31 December Wt+tZA=1+—H 783,588 782,546
Weighted average number of shares (basic) R+ZA=+—BE%TEEBRD
outstanding ordinary shares at 31 December I AR B (FA) 765,247 765,575

Note 1

Note 2
Note 3
Note 4

Net profit margin = profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company/
turnover

Effective tax rate = taxation/profit before taxation

Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

Quick ratio = current assets minus inventory/current liabilities

a1

Hiz2
i3
Hfiz4

JFEFIE =R LA RIERF A5 7] SR

FRBE = BB HAEF
BB E =GB EERBEE
BEYLFE=nBEENTFE A E
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The Group’s prospects look extremely promising as we
reach a major milestone in our Group’s history, our Silver
Jubilee year.

SFEEREBRAZTHAFRELCNERERE - §5
EEEBFAARRERNFIR °

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. Chairman
ZNJEEL > sBsS, JP EF



Chairman’s Statement EEREE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to report that, despite the uncertainties surrounding Hong Kong’s
markets last year, the Group’s turnover improved 12.7% to HK$232.4 million.
As a result, our operating profit improved 22.5%, from HK$74.9 million in
2011 to HK$91.8 million, while profit attributable to shareholders rose 14.6%
to HK$80.3 million from the HK$70.1 million achieved in 2011.

The result, apart from being highly satisfactory in a difficult year, indicates
an important shift in the component parts of the Group’s performance. The
continued weakness in Hong Kong’s major markets and intense competition
depressed margins for our core Government Electronic Trading Services
(“GETS”) revenue, which fell by 1.3% when compared with 2011. In addition,
the slowdown in China not only disrupted our activities there, with no new
project coming on stream or completed during the year, but also eroded the
profit contributions from our PRC associates, which declined by over 50%
year-on-year.

In the past, these would have had serious implications for our results. This
did not happen last year because contributions from our new activities, our
ROCARS and security solutions businesses, more than made up the gap.

While our costs also rose 10%, to HK$152.5 million, this does not mean that
our effort at controlling costs slipped last year. The higher cost mainly reflected
the cost of tokens for our new security solutions business. Net of such cost,
our operating costs actually declined by about 3.6% year-on-year despite
higher salary costs. | expect this trend, of rising costs despite continuing cost
controls, to continue as we expand activities in pursuit of growth.

The 2012 result signals the successful completion of the initial phase of
Tradelink’s re-engineering from a single product/service business to a multi-
faceted one, with sectorally distinct, but equally strong, recurrent income
streams built from our traditional activities and core competencies.

Over the past three years, we have successfully reduced dependency on
our GETS business, from contributing some 95% of our operational income
in 2010 to just over 70% in 2012, without affecting overall profitability. As |
said, our new ROCARS service, an extension of our GETS platform, helped to
plug the gap in GETS revenue while our new security solutions business, an
off-shoot of Digi-sign’s digital signature functionality originally established to
support our GETS business, contributed around 16% of our operating revenue
last year.

With over half the banking security tokens contract still to be completed, three
additional banks using our security tokens, albeit on a smaller scale, and
Phase 2 of the Hong Kong Police Smart Warrant Card System to be delivered
this Spring, the security solutions business at Digi-Sign will remain robust
in 2013. As well, several new business initiatives in this area, including the
Common Authentication Token and mobile banking security device both of
which were deferred for strategic and technical reasons, are now close to
fruition. The successful rolling out of even some of these will ensure strong
revenue growth for Digi-Sign in the coming years. We, therefore, expect its
contribution to our total revenue to continue to rise.

Annual Report 2012 —Z——444% 5

BMBMURR :

BARAEFEELSNMEISETHPEREZRNE - BS AR
RS AREBEMEEEEF12.7% %78 % 232,400,000
TL o AEBEMKLHENEBERI225% B - T——FEHBEK
74,900,000 T4 Z##91,800,0007T + M A% 5 (G % 7 Bl &
—E——FH)EE70,100,0007T 18 Z 8 180,300,0007T ¢+
F+14.6% °

BARABE—FRERERNY  EAEBMEETEREGAE
B ERMEBMNESESEEZEE - FENIEMS
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OISR - TEFERMESHNER  SBMEFA
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Al A B BHE R A #8150% ©

FROBEREEEAERE  RANXBATEREITE
BEFOERERAIFML - REZRFINFEEROCARS
RRLZRRRTREGEOSFER - RABEEDER -

SR E AT | FH10% 2 8 152,500,0007¢ + B3 5K
THMEFARB2NEHRA - FENTERRMRETR
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RMOEBE=ZFRINBIE L GETSEMAKIE o B AZET
MEERABRBE-ZZ—TFHB% IRET——FEKR
B70% - BEBEEMEEGEF o Eagid - AGETSFE
FIFRHIFT S ISROCARS - B AT HKSEGETSIRA B T » M
Digi-Sign/RA X IEGETSH TS E L 0 1 R AR L fF
RITRIMER - MAERFREEIRATEIL16% °

HRNIRITRERBESOANZ N —FHETK - MR8/
FREMIRITTMAEBRMORLREE - LSRR
ERLRERZIRRZRISFERT RN - Digi-Signt R
RIRRATREBE-_Z—ZFHHEBHE - 1o - FHED
ZIRFET - BIER R Rl R E iR e KRR %
RERERBDETFRITREZFEER - REBITRER - R
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Chairman’s Statement EEREE

In addition, as the economy in Hong Kong and China recovers, we expect our
DTTN and China activities to also recover, both in terms of project revenue
and investment returns. This will enable us to further reduce the Group’s
dependence on our GETS business for operational success.

We expect our GETS activities’ share of our results to come down further next
year, with the longer term target of taking it down to about a third of our total
operational revenue. The critical success factor of this strategy is obviously to
maintain GETS’ quantum contribution to our overall revenue whilst its share of
our results is reduced. Coupled with continued vigilance in our costs, this will
enable our gross revenue and profitability to grow steadily.

This gradual de-coupling of the Group’s fortunes from the gyrations of the
Hong Kong trade sector, a major strategic objective of your Board in recent
years, will improve the resilience of our balance sheet to downturns in Hong
Kong's external trade sector.

The 2012 results merely represent completion of the first phase of our re-
engineering. We will commence the next phase in earnest during the coming
year. To this end, the Board’s strategic objective for the coming three years
will be to defend our GETS franchise, consolidate Digi-Sign’s security solutions
business whilst furthering our DTTN and China activities to turn these into
a third recurrent revenue stream. The aim is to further spread the Group’s
revenue source between different business sectors and different geographic
areas to make our business more robust and less exposed to domestic cycles.
We have every confidence of success in this and are expectant of continuing
business growth.

As we enter into our Silver Jubilee year, the Group’s balance sheet remains
strong. More importantly, we are poised for further growth. |, therefore, have
no hesitation in recommending another 100% payout of our profits for 2012.
This means a final dividend of HK 6.9 cents per share, which, together
with the interim dividend of HK 3.3 cents, will give a total 2012 dividend of
HK 10.2 cents, 14.6% higher than the HK 8.9 cents last year. | appreciate the
continued support from my fellow board members and am grateful to the staff
for their hard work in achieving such an excellent result.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SB.S., J.P.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013

PEE DR R EES - HABETDTTNRF BEBHER
B AR @57 E I RTE - #E— R IKGETSERSE # A

EEREnTE -

ERE

HMIEFTGETSEBMEREXENLBHERFEE—HT
F o REMF - BIAIHEGETSER 2 RIGEEKL2HIK
A= — - EHEEBARDBRERGETSEBIGRE X
BB TRNRRE - EEREBERBBANSEESAGES - &
B RERMEER D EGIRA - TPIH U AT % 3h
AL A -

EFRIFNERERER RRHSEENEBENET
BESMISHN - B RO REXEREBIENS T

BRSO -

R FEER R ARG ER - B
FERFHBHNRAE R TIE - EFGARK=FHIRE
BRRMHITGETSHET - ZEDigi-SigntR LRI RE
% WE—ZMEDTINERFEER B8t hE A&
FHRASR « BPIEN < EEEARATRD BT R A2
BHEE M, - UEE X - RS EERROTE -
#HfEER LR BRRREL - WREERS L5 -

FERSFBA-TRAFRELS  XERFRE ME
BEENE B EEMEDERRIEER - Bt - AAE
IRBFBRRELI0% S —ZFnMERE - BRI
SEE6.98 - ERPHREIIE - —E-—FHRF
B HB10.28Al - BREFHBIENLL6% « RAELL
RABEFTENENRAXF  AROEHEBTHE R
SR -

E
ZJhfEE L - SBS,, J.P.

EB —E-—=F=-A-1+H
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Management Discussion and Analysis BBt R o

General

As expected, the economic climate in Hong Kong’s major markets remained
weak during 2012. This, plus intense competition, continued to depress
margins for our core GETS business. Our DTTN and China activities were
similarly affected. With growth slowing in China, the sentiment for investing in
expansion, particularly in new technology, weakened and delayed our effort to
close any of the projects under negotiation. It also de-railed our plan to extend
the deployment of DTTN Gateways in that market. As well, profit contributions
from our PRC associates fell by over 50%. Fortunately, revenue from our new
ROCARS service, launched in November 2011, and our new security solutions
business, which was rolled out in earnest during the second half of 2012, more
than made up the shortfall and total revenue improved in excess of 12%.

In addition to falling revenue from key sources, we also faced heavy cost
pressures. While staff costs rose only by a modest 2%, other operational costs
rose by nearly 20% year-on-year, due mainly to new activities, particularly the
banking security tokens business and the Police Smart Warrant Card System.
Net of these, our operational costs grew by about 4% despite major efforts to
address costs, including bringing staff numbers down, by about 9% from 281
in 2011 to 256 at the end of 2012, closing down our Beijing Office and two of
our three Service Centers.

Total costs dropped, however, by 4% because of lower depreciation charges,
which fell by HK$9.5 million since the DTTN computer platform became fully
depreciated during the fourth quarter of 2011. As a result, the Group’s profits
for the year rose 14.6% to HK$80.3 million.

The 2012 results show the first fruits of our effort at diversification: both
revenue and profits recorded double digit growth despite the decline in GETS
revenue, the drastic decline in returns from our PRC activities and rising costs.
While it is satisfying, we are not content and will re-double our effort to seek
further growth.

The search for growth will follow an overall strategy of expanding our product
offerings, preferably away from the Hong Kong trade sector to further reduce
reliance on our traditional GETS franchise for operational success. The focus
will be on new recurrent business based on our core competencies and
domain knowledge.

Our new ROCARS service and our security solutions business are examples.
They both devolved from expertise gained from traditional activities, leverage
heavily on our domain knowledge and are recurrent in nature. The security
solutions business is critical to this strategy. As it is totally divorced from the
trade sector, it improves our resilience to the vagaries of Hong Kong's external
trade sector, a sector upon which our GETS franchise is totally dependent but
where we have absolutely no ability to influence. For this reason, we will be
devoting additional resources to consolidate and further grow this business. In

addition, resources will be devoted to widening the DTTN net, in terms of both
its operational and geographical catchment, to ensure that the current growth
trend is sustained.

—TEH AR EEMSAKERRE S FSER
55 - M ETEBF AR #E—FHBRMZOEBGETSH
7% o BPODTINR A EEBIIRALMZ I ZE o AR
Bl IR RMAE  MBHEBERTANRERFES - m
RO ELESRFE  URBPEETOESER
HREREEE - NoRMENMTIZHAEDTTN Gateway
BUETEIZME - PEIS & AR M E RN T B B50% © T
B BN T ——F+— A AROCARSIRE KA =F
— ZF T FHHORTEART RETHERAMA - R LA
HZEBHBAR D « BRAOHBIAILREDL2% ©

BT EBREBWATES - HPITTE SR AL INAES - 8
ARE TRAEEMILIN2% - BERRITRRBEERRE RE
BREERTEFRAETMEL  SHMEERASZF LR
20% - BERMEBNEHKA - BEKETABR=-Z
——FH2BIARE T~ FEMN256 A ORDHI9%) - B
R R R ARG L - BIPIVEERANIA LT
4% °

B HADTTINEFAER T ——FENF 2897
B BT E R SUR A8 19,500,0007T ¢ F AR AN TR
4% » SAEEFE AN HEF EF14.6% %75 %80,300,0007T °

TR ENEERBRBEMAB N ETEBERENIK
B o FEGETSHM AR ~ A BIZE TS B 3R IR TR PA R R A
PIREERT - BAAIEVBB ARG R AEEIS B BT H 18
o BAREER  ERMIEAMER  MILSMES
N - PHUEERER -

B ERREZFEEERRYE - FRERREEESI TS
LASMNNEERS - BONTEEE T M P BUREIAE — R D BER
FIGETSIRISEVIKEE - PRI A SN EREENEENE
(A BORMABEERANTES -

AP BROCARSIRIS IR R AR IR T7 SR IE 25 77 E A 4F
BIF - EMIAEBR A B AEAEBHOF PR MM AR
I FEEHAMF - MEABETEWRA - REMRTRE T
MEBERRRBBEESR - AREREH 2 TERES
HHADRE R MR EEIIE TS OEEEAEROEE - &
PIGETSX K EINETIH S S8R - ERMABELHZT
5o Bt HAERHEZER - ZEME - SERRTR
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Management Discussion and Analysis BBt R o

General (continued)

In terms of operational catchment, we will go up stream in the Supply Chain
to entrench DTTN functionalities. The Community Platform being built in
partnership with Global Logistics System (HK) Company Limited (“GLSHK")
and the mobile Order Management and Freight Forwarder Invoice applications
being completed for our Tradelink Box utility will further improve our service
offerings. While the mobile Order Management application has been on trial for
some months now, the Community Platform will only be launched at the end
of the first quarter this year and the Freight Forwarder Invoice application early
in the second half of 2013. As transactions mature, we expect strong revenue
contributions from these sources.

Expanding our geographical catchment obviously involves China. We will work
with, rather than against, domestic PRC players to avoid competing head to
head with them. Our primary strategy is to graft our international network and
connectivities to platforms owned/developed by strategic partners, leaving
them to market and operate their systems domestically while we look after the
international aspects of their systems. The first such platform, in conjunction
with U-Link an associate where we have a 20% stake, should be rolled out
in the second quarter of this year. In addition, five other projects under
negotiation in different key areas in the China market will help to resuscitate
our effort to deploy DTTN networks there.

The medium term goal is to develop a third source of recurrent revenue for the
Group from our DTTN base. This, together with our core GETS services and
the security solutions business, should in future provide three distinct sources
of recurrent revenue for the Group. The aim is to achieve roughly equal
revenue contributions from each of these sources over time. As long as we can
successfully protect our GETS franchise, this strategy should eventually result
in our gross revenue and profits doubling. We are confident of success in this.

Thus, the Group’s prospects look extremely promising as we reach a major
milestone in our Group’s history, our Silver Jubilee year.

Business Review

(i) Tradelink/DTTN
As mentioned above, our core business of providing front-end GETS
remained under pressure from the weak economic sentiment in Hong
Kong's major markets and intense competition, with margins being
squeezed. Despite a 1.7% recovery in the overall GETS market, turnover
of our GETS services declined by 1.3% year-on-year. At the same time,
income from operating the ROCARS Call Service on behalf of the Customs
& Excise Department fell dramatically as the industry became familiar

with the requirements. This shortfall was, however, adequately covered by
revenue from our ROCARS services.

frit ()

EEMAAEEBEIE  ROSBIEMEE EFER - U
TEDTTNEY DA « RMERERBSBERAB([EAEE]D
AERENIHERT A ] - AR BT Tradelink BoxJAH)
[MBTEEERG IR BERERRZF TR - Al
—HIEINBAPUREA R - [RBFTEERRZRIEHATZE
A T#ERTFEIERSFETREL  MIEEREEER
FINGE_T—=FTEFRARS - ELREEERR
& B ABMERRSIAIBA -

R EES A E - PREAEARBMOEIE - BB
HEAMFEEENE  MIFRMMERRET - HANELRREE
REMAERAREA FENTAEERMOERERK - &
WER AR REEMPINRS - MEFRREEBNRER
BIFER - RIPEA20%ERNAEQF LEERERMS
TERE M B EEF 6 - RS FE ZFHE © thih - T
EHETFEEEMRTSERERNEMEEXEEE &
BERMEHERARMBRDTINA X o

HMFHEREADTINEBS LR - AEERME=H
BEMN - G5 ERRPINZOEHGETSIRS RIR % 7
RARIRT - ATERRREER{AZBTROLEERAR
R o BAPIA BEEE BIREE = AR IRANE L KRB
BV ABR - RBEPIKIIRIFGETSHI R » ERRE RS
AL H I A TR FIEE - BIPTE U FRELD ©

SEREERA—THAFRELONEZERE  BR%E
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EBERE

() E5i® DTN

EANATSCATIAL - R BB EBTISEERSFIESS
IEBFER - RIEHATRGETSHZ L EREEZ
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Management Discussion and Analysis BBt R o

Business Review (continued)

(i) Tradelink/DTTN (continued)
Although the weak sentiments in the China market also affected our DTTN
activities, particularly our ability to deploy additional DTTN Gateways
in that market, DTTN development work continued during 2012. The
successful paperless e-freight pilot in collaboration with Cathay Pacific
Airways and GLSHK in 2011 led to a project with GLSHK to jointly develop
a “Community Platform” for connecting our predominantly shipper clients
with their air forwarders and the forwarders with their carriers. When the
platform is completed at the end of the first quarter of 2013, our clients
will be able to dispense with all paper documents when connecting with
their forwarders through the platform, improving efficiencies and saving
costs whilst paving the way for the introduction of e-freight in Hong Kong.

Work on the Tradelink Box also progressed, with our web-form clients
commencing migration to it towards the end of 2012. Since then, all new
clients are serviced via the Tradelink Box. New applications developed
included a mobile Order Management System and a Warehouse
Management System. In addition, the Freight Forwarder module is being
augmented with a Freight Forwarder Invoice application to help shippers
manage settlement of their freight charges.

(ii) Digi-Sign

Digi-Sign’s new security solutions business blossomed during the year,
with about ten banks currently using its services. After lengthy delay,
delivery of security tokens for our major bank client commenced in the
second half of 2012, with about half of the contract performed by the end
of the year. Similarly, work on the Hong Kong Police Smart Warrant Card
System commenced during the second half of the year, with Phase 1
completed by the year-end. Even with only partial completion of these two
major projects, revenue grew about four-fold during the year. Digi-Sign
now accounts for about 16% of the Group’s revenue.

(i) China

Our China activities suffered the most during 2012: we were unable to
close any of the projects under negotiation and returns from our PRC
associates dropped by over 50%. In addition, our associate, T &kt k48
R AR AT (“SCNT”), failed to take off and is now in the process of
being re-launched. Another associate, U-Link, is, however, completing its
initial build-up and should be launching its 4PL Matching platform in the
second quarter of 2013. It expects to become profitable in 2013.

Financial Review

The Group’s turnover for the year rose 12.7%, from HK$206.2 million in 2011
to HK$232.4 million in 2012. Despite a 1.7% increase in the size of the overall
GETS market, turnover of our GETS services declined by 1.3% year-on-year
as a result of intense competition. The increase in 2012 revenue thus came
mainly from the fulfillment of approximately half of the security token services
contract for a local bank and the completion of Phase | of the Police Smart
Warrant Card System.

EHERE(E)

() B5E DITN(E)
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(ii) Digi-Sign

Digi-Sign## E MR R IRR T REB R FRNEEE
# - BROFTRRTEAEERE - RMA—MX
ARITIRHARZETERRSITEZRE - BKREZ
T—_FTHFREHA  EFRFOEREH—FHOR
ot RFETHFNRAEFEBREHREES
EFMIE YERFEZKRE—HIE BRAEW
EEE R2IH T - 1B % Digi-SignH IR ATE & A1
&IPS o Digi-SignIR ARE BB AEE416% °

(iii) FE

RoZE——%F ZMETPETSNEBTEER &
HERTHNEBIGREEE  MEAGEQRNEER
TRR50% © eoh - AP & B R RDTE kA4 1
FARRRN(DTEEA ) ERGEIRF RS - B AT
EENEEHRE - T8 5—82QF LEERAE
TRVISERTE  BAR - =FF_FHHE
WA REE T A YRR T —=FRIFAHM -

g e

REBMARFENEERLF127% AT ——F18
#206,200,0007T © EFE =T — = F 232,400,000
JC ° BEREEBEGETSTIB EFH1.7% - BlRMiIEHRIHEL
LHEMGETSIRIBSH S EBIRF THK13% - —T— 48
W3R - FEHNAEED ST HE E—HARRITE
AR RZRIGRREE N THARLN—ERE - UARTHES
LR SRR TERRNE SIS -




10  Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited B 5BEETE 5 AR AT

—

Management Discussion and Analysis EEE:1iw R o

Financial Review (continued)

The Group’s operating costs before depreciation charges increased
substantially, from HK$119.6 million in 2011 to HK$142.5 million in 2012,
due mainly to the cost of tokens for the security tokens contract and the system
hardware, smart cards and accessories for the Hong Kong Police project.
These amounted to HK$20 million in 2012, a significant increase over the
HK$1.7 million recorded in 2011 under this head. Net of this, operating costs
increased by 4%, from HK$117.9 million in 2011 to HK$122.6 million, last
year. During the year, depreciation charges at HK$10 million, was lower than
2011 by HK$9.5 million as the DTTN computer platform was fully depreciated
in the fourth quarter of 2011. As a result, the Group’s profit from operations for
2012 increased 22.6% to HK$91.8 million, compared to the HK$74.9 million
recorded for 2011.

With the performance of the Group’s PRC associates and jointly controlled
entity slipping, from HK$5.8 million in 2011 to HK$2.6 million in 2012, the
profit for 2012 came to HK$80.2 million, a 14.4% increase over the HK$70.1
million achieved in 2011. After adjusting the results shared from non-
controlling interests, profit attributable to equity shareholders for 2012 was
HK$80.3 million, a growth of 14.6% over 2011. Basic earnings per share for
2012 came to HK 10.4 cents, up 14.3% from HK 9.1 cents in 2011.

Liquidity and Financial Position

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total cash and bank deposits of
HK$127.3 million (31 December 2011: HK$148.0 million). The decline in
our cash balance mainly reflected an increase in our investments in corporate
bonds, treated as available-for-sale securities, from HK$225.6 million in
2011 to HK$265.2 million. Total assets and net assets of the Group as at 31
December 2012 amounted to HK$616.0 million (2011: HK$575.6 million) and
HK$359.0 million (2011: HK$340.8 million) respectively.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no borrowings (2011: Nil).

Capital and Reserves
As at the end of 2012, the capital and reserves attributable to shareholders
stood at HK$358.4 million, an increase of HK$17.6 million over 2011.
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Financial Review (continued)

Charges on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had two bank guarantees and one
performance bond issued to the Government for the due performance of the
following contracts:

(i) A bank guarantee of HK$2.1 million for our GETS Il Contract, which runs
from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2016;

(ii) A performance bond of HK$0.6 million for the ROCARS Contract, which
runs for 5 years from production roll-out in January 2010; and

(iii) A bank guarantee of HK$0.4 million for the Hong Kong Police Smart
Warrant Card System, which will remain extant for 10 years commencing
from production roll-out at the end of 2012.

The above are secured by charges over our deposits.

The Group also provided a bank guarantee of HK$1.2 million for a revolving
credit facility granted to Telstra Technology Services (Hong Kong) Limited,
an associate. The guarantee is a continuing one and may not be released
or discharged until the expiration of six months after payment, discharge or
satisfaction in full of the guaranteed liability.

Other than the foregoing, the Group had no other charges on its assets.

Capital Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as at end 2012 not provided for in the
financial statements amounted to HK$1.5 million (2011: HK$0.5 million),
mainly in respect of hardware and software for our computer platforms and
office premises improvements.

In 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with strategic business partners
to subscribe for a 24.5% equity interest in SCNT for a cash consideration of
RMB2.45 million. Half was invested in 2012. Outstanding commitment as at
31 December 2012 in respect of the capital investment in SCNT not provided
in the financial statements amounted to RMB1.225 million.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges

As at 31 December 2012, other than its investments in the PRC incorporated
entities and Renminbi-denominated debt securities, the Group had no foreign
exchange exposure or related hedges.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s accounting policies and
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012. It also had
independent discussions with the internal auditor and the external auditor,
KPMG, without the presence of the management team.
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Corporate Review

()

(ii)

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed 256 staff (2011: 281), of
which 219 work in Hong Kong and 37 in Guangzhou. The related staff
costs for the year came to HK$89.8 million (2011: HK$88.2 million).

The Group’s remuneration policy is that all employees are rewarded on
the basis of market levels. In addition to salaries, the Group provides staff
benefits including medical insurance and contribution to staff's mandatory
provident fund. To motivate and reward performance, the Group has a
discretionary performance bonus scheme, the mechanics of which were
revised during 2012 to better drive and reward growth.

The Company operates two share option schemes and a share award
scheme to reward performance of assistant managers and above. Since
implementation of the share award scheme in 2009, no additional options
have been granted, although earlier options remain valid.

Corporate Developments

Our “China—Hong Kong Cross Border Co-operation on Electronic
Cargo Manifest” joint project with our associate, Guangdong Nanfang
Haian Science & Technology Service Company Limited, won the Best
Collaboration (Service) Gold Award at the Hong Kong ICT Award 2012. In
awarding us the Gold Award, the judges acknowledged the innovativeness
of the project and the contribution it made to enhancing HK’s overall
competitiveness.

Tradelink also won a Gold Award at this year's Mystery Caller Assessment
Award organized by the Hong Kong Call Center Association, the first year
we have participated in the event. Our Call Center was also awarded
a Service Quality Management Certification by the Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency.

With concerted effort at staff relations and charitable work, we
successfully applied to the HK Council of Social Service to be a “Caring
Company” and became entitled to use the logo as from 1 March 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management EER SN EEE

Directors

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SB.S., J.P., aged 70, was appointed a Director on
19 September 2000. He is also our Chairman. He holds a Bachelor's degree
in Electrical Engineering from the Imperial College, London, the United
Kingdom and a Doctorate from Brown University, the United States. He
joined Textile Alliance Limited (TAL) in Hong Kong in 1973 and in 1983, was
appointed Managing Director (title changed to Chief Executive since 2010)
of TAL Apparel Limited which currently employs over 20,000 employees. He
was a Director of The Link Management Limited and of Phillips-Van Heusen
Corporation. He has over 30 years’ experience in the textile and garment
industry. He is actively involved in a number of trade organizations in Hong
Kong. He was the Chairman of the Innovation and Technology Fund (Textiles)
Projects Vetting Committee, council member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is currently the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Garment
Manufacturer’s Association, Honorary Chairman of Textile Council of Hong
Kong Ltd, board member of Global Apparel, Footwear & Textile Initiative,
Chairman of Hong Kong Research Institute of Textiles & Apparel Ltd. He was
named in the Queen’s birthday honours list as an Officer of the British Empire
(“OBE") in 1996. He was appointed a Justice of Peace (“J.P.”) in 1997 and
was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star (“S.B.S.”) at the Fourth Anniversary of
the Establishment of the HKSAR in 2001.

Executive Directors

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 63, was appointed a Director on 1
October 2009. He served as an INED of the Company during the period from
2 September 2008 to 13 July 2009. Mr. WU was appointed an Executive
Director and CEO-designate of the Company on 1 October 2009 and assumed
the CEO role on 1 January 2010. He is currently a director of the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiaries, Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited, Digital
Trade and Transportation Network Limited, Up Forward Technology Limited
and EClink Technology Limited. Mr. WU is also a director of the following
subsidiaries of the Company: Tradelink (Beijing) Electronic Commerce Limited
(b RE A FBEFRIFREAR AT, Tianjin Tradelink Technology Ltd. (kX
HE ZiBRH AR AR, Tradelink (Tianjin) Electronic Commerce Limited (X
AEESBETFREAERAR), REEMSBEEEAR QS and Guangzhou
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Ltd. (B/NE S REFRIEERAT). Mr.
WU graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1972 and served in the
then Government of Hong Kong until 1989 when he joined the Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC”) becoming its Deputy Chairman, Chief Operating
Officer and Executive Director of Intermediaries Supervision Departments
from 1995 to 1997. In 1999, Mr. WU joined the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (“CSRC”) and acted as its Advisor until 2001. From April 2001
to July 2002, he served as a commissioner of the Strategy & Development
Committee of CSRC and the Deputy Chairman of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. He subsequently joined SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited
(listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and
acted as its Chairman (China Region) until June 2004. Mr. WU continued to
act as an independent non-executive director of SW Kingsway Capital Holdings
Limited until 21 November 2011. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited and both an independent
non-executive director and Chairman of Cypress Jade Agricultural Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Ever Fortune International Holdings Limited) (both
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). He
was an independent non-executive director of First Mobile Group Holdings
Limited (listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited with Stock Code: 865) between 31 August 2000 and 2 December
2009.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew, aged 43, was appointed a Director and
acting DCEO of the Company on 15 November 2011. He is currently DCEO of
the Company. Mr. CHENG holds a Master of Commerce degree in Information
Systems from the University of New South Wales, a Master of Engineering
degree from the University of Sydney, a Bachelor of Engineering degree with
Honours in Electrical Engineering from the University of Sydney and a Bachelor
of Science degree from the University of Sydney. Mr. CHENG is currently a
director of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries, Digi-Sign Certification
Services Limited, Up Forward Technology Limited, EClink Technology Limited
and Trade Facilitation Services Limited. He is also a director of the following
subsidiaries of the Company: Tradelink (Beijing) Electronic Commerce Limited
(b REHFEEFRIFREAR AT, Tianjin Tradelink Technology Ltd. (K
B SERHR AR AR, Tradelink (Tianjin) Electronic Commerce Limited (X
REEZREFHBERAR), NEEMHBERHLBRAF], Guangzhou
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Ltd. (BEMEZ S RE TR BR2AF]) and
BPS Tradelink Logistics Information Systems Ltd. (BN S @BERYIRE
BEMABRAT). Mr. CHENG has over 18 years’ experience in IT-related
business, covering internet security, domestic and international supply chain,

logistics and finance. He was a specialist in the consultancy on the setting
up of a Public Key Infrastructure (“PKI”) by the Hong Kong Government and
is currently a member of the Advisory Committee on the Code of Practice for
Recognized Certification Authorities of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Government as well as a member of the Expert Review
Panel of Hong Kong R&D Centre for Logistics and Supply Chain Management
Enabling Technologies.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily, aged 56, was appointed a Director on 2
September 2008. She joined the Company in 1992. She is currently the Chief
Operations Officer of the Company and a director of the Company’s wholly
owned subsidiaries, Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited, Digital Trade
and Transportation Network Limited and Up Forward Technology Limited.
Ms. CHUNG is also a director of the following subsidiaries of the Company:
Tradelink (Beijing) Electronic Commerce Limited (Jt R & 5@ E FRIHE
BR7& AR AT, Tianjin Tradelink Technology Ltd. (K28 S@EEHLERA
7)), Tradelink (Tianjin) Electronic Commerce Limited (K)2Z = 5BE 1
EARAR), REEMSBEREIRAR AT, Guangzhou Tradelink Electronic
Commerce Ltd. (B/NEMSBEFRIEEABRAR]) and BPS Tradelink
Logistics Information Systems Ltd. (BM ZBEMYRIEBRITERAF).
She previously served as an Executive Director of the Company from 13 May
2005 to 3 November 2006 and from 9 July 2007 to 27 November 2007
respectively. Ms. CHUNG graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Science degree and a Master of Science degree in Engineering.
Prior to joining the Company, Ms. CHUNG worked in the then Government of
Hong Kong for over 11 years providing management consultancy services to
government bureau and departments. Since joining the Company in 1992, she
has over 20 years of solid experience in the e-commerce business with both
the public and private sectors. She has a wealth of diversified experience in
the management of various business aspects of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael, aged 51, was appointed a Director on 9 May
2008. He is the Managing Director of GCIS Limited. Mr. KIHM has over 20
years of experience in financial management. Prior to founding GCIS Limited,
he had been with Allianz Group for 14 years where he held senior positions
in asset management, mergers & acquisitions and corporate finance. Prior
to joining Allianz, he had worked for 3 years as a consultant in treasury
management. Mr. KIHM has been awarded the CFA charter by CFA Institute,
Charlotteville, USA, a Master’s degree in Management from ESCP-EAP, Paris,
France and Master’s degree in Mathematics from University of UIm, Germany.

Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth, aged 57, was appointed a Director on 26 June
2012. He was a director of the Company during the period from 16 September
1996 to 9 May 2008. Mr. YING is the Managing Director of COSCO-HIT
Terminals (Hong Kong) Limited (“CHT”). He is also an EXCO member of the
Hutchison Port Holdings Trust. Mr. YING has over 30 years’ experience in
the finance and logistic sector. Prior to joining CHT, he held various executive
positions at Hutchison Port Holdings Limited (“HPH”). He was the Executive
Director of Hongkong International Terminals Limited and the Finance Director
of South China Division of HPH. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accounts and also a fellow member of the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. He was a member of the Port
Development Advisory Group of the HKSAR.
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Directors (continued)

Non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. LEE Delman, aged 45, was appointed a Director of the Company on 29
October 2012. Dr. LEE holds a doctorate from the University of Oxford and a
Bachelor’s degree in Electrical & Electronics Engineering from the Imperial
College, London. He is the President and Chief Technology Officer for TAL
Apparel Limited (“TAL"), which currently holds approximately 12.91% of the
issued share capital of the Company. He is responsible for driving TAL's long-
term strategy in operations, technology and value-added services to customers.
He looks after information technology and supply chain projects — from IT
infrastructure to logistics management throughout the entire organization. He
is the architect behind the company’s current enterprise resource planning
(ERP) system. He is also responsible for global operations initiatives such as
standardization of work methods, cultivation of a continuous improvement
organization and corporate social responsibility.

Dr. LEE joined TAL Apparel in 2000. He was appointed a member of the
TAL Group’s Executive Committee in 2006 and became President and Chief
Technology Officer in 2010. He has a strong background in research. Prior to
joining TAL, he was a researcher at UK based Sharp Laboratories of Europe
for three years. There, he was responsible for the commercial application of
modern computer vision techniques to stereo photography and stereoscopic
displays. He has worked as a research fellow at University of Pennsylvania in
the US and University of Leeds in the UK in various aspects of imaging.

Since 4 March 2010, Dr. LEE has been a director of Luckytex (Thailand) Public
Co. Ltd. (listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand with stock code “LTX").

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAK Hubert, aged 51, was appointed a Director on 21 October 2002. He
is currently Director (Corporate Development) of The Link Management Limited
(“The Link”), the manager of The Link Real Estate Investment Trust, which he
joined in June 2010 and is responsible for the corporate development function
of The Link. Before joining The Link, he was the Group Chief Operating Officer
and Executive Director of CSI Properties Limited. Mr. CHAK held various senior
management positions at PCCW Limited between 1999 and 2007 and was
an executive director of Pacific Century Premium Developments Limited until
February 2007. He holds a Master of Business Administration Degree and
a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from University of
Wales (now known as Cardiff University).
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Directors and Senior Management EER SN EEE

Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay, aged 70, was appointed a Director of the Company on
1 September 2009. He was the Non-executive Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company from 1998 to 2002. Mr. CHAU graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1967. He served in the Hong Kong Government
from 1967 to 2002. Between 1988 and 2002, Mr. CHAU served in a number
of principal official positions in the Government, including Secretary for
Trade and Industry, Secretary for Commerce and Industry, Secretary for
Broadcasting, Culture and Sport, and Secretary for Health and Welfare.
Following his departure from the Government, Mr. CHAU was an independent
non-executive director of the Hong Kong Main Board listed China Life
Insurance Company Limited from 2003 to 2009. He has been an independent
non-executive director of the Hong Kong Main Board listed SUM Holdings
Limited since 2008; and Wheelock and Company Limited since 2012. Mr.
CHAU was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Government in
2002.

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy, aged 63, was appointed a Director on 11
May 2007. He has over 20 years of experience in financial advisory, taxation
and management. He was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers and retired in
June 2005. In October 2005, he joined a professional consulting firm, Russell
Bedford Hong Kong Limited, as Director-Tax & Business Advisory. Mr. CHUNG
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Taxation Institution of Hong Kong and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA). He was the President of the Hong Kong branch of ACCA
for the year 2005/06. He is currently also an Independent Non-executive
Director and Chairman of the audit committee of Fittec International Group
Limited, Fook Woo Group Holdings Limited and Lee Kee Holdings Limited (all
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and China World Trade
Center Company Limited (listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange).
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Directors and Senior Management EER SN EEE

Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P., aged 52, was appointed a Director on 13 May
2005. Mr. HO is the Executive Director of the Hong Kong Shippers’ Council.
He has over 20 years’ experience in the Shipping and Logistics industry.
As he now shapes the thrust of the Shippers’ Council mandate as the voice
of the Hong Kong shippers, he has considerable experience in aspects of
trade and transport of goods. Prior to the Shippers’ Council, he was Deputy
Managing Director of Swire Shipping Agencies and Taikoo Maritime Services
Ltd, gaining experience in liner shipping, warehousing and distribution,
freight forwarding, container haulage, mid-stream operations, China feeders,
transport and logistics services. Mr. HO is a member of the Port Operations
Committee, the Logistics Industry Training Advisory Committee, and the
Transport & Shipping Committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce. He was appointed as the Chairman of Logistics Committee of the
Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport in Hong Kong for 2003-2004, a
member of the Dangerous Goods Standing Committee for several years and
Chairman of the Hong Kong Liner Shipping Association for 1993-1995. He is
the current Chairman of Hong Kong Logistics Management Staff Association,
Vice President of the Chartered Institute of Logistics & Transport in Hong
Kong, Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing (Hong Kong), and Advisor
to the China Council for the Promotion of International Trade of International
Trade Guangzhou Sub-Council, and Shenzhen Ports Association. Mr. HO Has
been elected as a member of the Election Committee for the Chief Executive in
2011.

Mr. TSE Kam Keung, aged 53, was appointed a Director on 4 March 2013.
Mr. TSE is a veteran executive in the financial services industry in the Asia
Pacific region. He joined State Street Bank & Trust Company in 1993 to
develop its Asia servicing business and was recognized as the first international
officer to get promoted to the rank of Executive Vice President in 2002. In
2011 he transitioned to a part-time advisory role to pursue other interests.
Before joining State Street, he spent four years at Standard Chartered as its
Director, Institutional Services, responsible for marketing and client relationship
for its pension, trust, investment and custody service in Asia. Prior to that, he
worked at Ogilvy & Mathers as its Director, Financial Communications, Baring
Securities as an Investment Analyst and the Hong Kong Government as an
Administrative Officer.

Mr. TSE has a long track record of public services, having served on a
variety of industry groups and government committees, including chairing
the China Securities Regulatory Commission’s Open-ended Fund Expert
Committee, and sitting on the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Appeal
Tribunal. He is currently a member of the Financial Infrastructure Sub-
Committee of the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee, a member of the Hong
Kong Government’s Statistics Advisory Board and a member of the Advisory
Committee on Human Resources Development in the Financial Services
Sector, under which he co-chairs the Working Group on the Strategic Needs of
Hong Kong as a Regional Financial Hub. In recognition of his contribution to
the industry, Asian Investor awarded Mr. TSE its inaugural Individual Service
Award in 2008.
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. TSE also participates actively in charitable work, having supported Oxfam
for over two decades, including acting as its Chairman from 2003-2009. He is
currently Vice-Chairman of Oxfam’s China Program Committee and a member
of its Finance and Audit Committees.

Mr. TSE received his BA magna cum laude from Lawrence University of
Wisconsin in 1981, a MBA from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1985, and a MPA from the University of Hong Kong in 1988. He is a Certified
Management Accountant (Australia) and an Adjunct Professor, co-chairing the
Advisory Board of the Quantitative Finance Program of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Board of Trustees of Lawrence
University.

Senior Management

Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred, aged 62, is our Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary. As the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, Mr. LI is
responsible for all our financial management activities including financial
accounting and reporting, treasury, budgeting, financial planning and
control. He is a director of the following subsidiaries of the Company: Digi-
Sign Certification Services Limited, Digital Trade and Transportation Network
Limited, Up Forward Technology Limited, Trade Facilitation Services Limited,
Tianjin Tradelink Technology Ltd. CK)2E 5@EHEERAR]) and BPS
Tradelink Logistics Information Systems Ltd. (B SBE RIS S RME
B2 A ®]). He has over 33 years’ experience in finance and accounting. Prior to
joining us in 1997, he held the post of Senior Manager in the Finance Division
of Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited. He holds a Master’s degree in
Business Administration, a Master of Science degree in Logistics and a Master
of Science degree in Finance. He is a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants in the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.
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The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate governance and
confirms that it has complied with all the provisions of the prevailing Code on
Corporate Governance Practices in the Listing Rules.

(1) Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules to govern its Directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities. Having made specific enquiry, all
Directors have confirmed compliance with the required standards during
2012.

(2) Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Company recognizes the need for a sound and effective system
of internal control and risk management to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets. As an on-going process, the
Company has assessed its internal control system with reference to the
COSO (The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission, 1994) internal control framework, specifically in relation
to the five elements of: control environment, risk assessment, control
activities, communication and monitoring. In addition, the Company
also carried out a high-level risk assessment review in the form of a self-
risk assessment process by relevant department heads supplemented
by independent risk control tests conducted by the Company’s Internal
Audit Department. The review covered the Company’s operations and
its associated key processes and sub-processes, including strategic
management, core business processes and resource management.
Based on these reviews, the Company is satisfied that its internal control
and risk management systems are adequate and effective.
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(3) Board of Directors 3) EEg
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(i) Board Composition

The Company is led by a Board comprising three Executive Directors,
four Non-executive Directors, including the Chairman of the Board,
and five Independent Non-executive Directors. The Independent
Non-executive Directors represent more than one-third of the
Board as required by the Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The five
Independent Non-executive Directors have all confirmed in writing to
the Company that they meet the guidelines for independence in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board oversees the overall management and operations of the
Company. Major responsibilities include determining the Company’s
overall business, financial and technical strategies, setting key
performance targets, approving budgets and major expenditures,
supervising the performance of management with the objective of
enhancing shareholder value.

As at the date of this annual report, the members of the Board are:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.

Executive Directors

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily (Chief Operations Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael
Dr. LEE Delman*

Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAK Hubert

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P.

Mr. TSE Kam Keung

(* Dr. LEE Delman is a nephew of Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.)

The Directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board on the
advice of the Remuneration Committee and have regard to specific
duties and responsibilities. As at the date of this annual report, no
Independent Non-executive Director has served on the Board for
more than nine years.

The biographical information of Directors is in the “Directors and
Senior Management” Section on pages 13 to 19 of this annual
report.
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(3) Board of Directors (continued)

(ii)

Changes to Board Composition

Pursuant to Article 92 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may from time to time appoint a Director to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Such new Directors hold
office only until the following annual general meeting but are then
eligible for re-election. Two such appointments were made by the
Board since the publication of the 2011 Annual Report. Pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, these changes are highlighted as
follows:

(a) Mr. IP Chi Sing, Eric, Non-executive Director, resigned with
effect from 26 June 2012;

(b) Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth, was appointed a Non-executive

Director with effect from 26 June 2012;

(c) Ms. TSANG Oi Lin, Ophelia, Non-executive Director, resigned
with effect from 26 October 2012;

(d) Dr. LEE Delman, was appointed a Non-executive Director with

effect from 29 October 2012; and

(e) Mr. TSE Kam Keung was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Directors with effect from 4 March 2013.

(iii) Appointment, Rotational Retirement and Re-election

(iv)

There are no service contracts between the Company and the Non-
executive/Independent Non-executive Directors. They have no fixed
terms of service but are subject to the rotational retirement and re-
election provisions in Article 100 of the Articles of Association of the
Company. Pursuant to that, one half of the Directors retires each
year but are eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer are held by Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. and Mr. WU
Wai Chung, Michael, respectively to maintain effective segregation of
duties. The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functioning of
the Board and the strategies of the Group while the Chief Executive
Officer is responsible is for managing the Group’s day-to-day
businesses.

The Chairman of the Board held a private session with the Non-
executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of the Executive Directors immediately after the
Board meeting on 20 November 2012.
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(3) Board of Directors (continued) 3) EE=(HE)
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(v) Directors’ Time Commitments

The Directors have confirmed that, during the course of the year,
they devoted adequate time to discharging their duties as members
of the Board and its Committees. The Directors also confirmed
that they had been provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
operations, performance and business prospects together with
monthly management accounts to enable them to discharge their
duties. Directors further confirmed that additional information,
explanation and clarification were provided by the management
team in response to questions raised by them in the course of their
reviews of such materials.

During the year, Mr. CHAU Tak Hay took up appointment as an FRN - FAERAAETSEUERARNET
Independent Non-executive Director of Wheelock and Company BEZARNBIIENITES - FLERR « #
Limited. Mr. CHAU has confirmed that the new appointment will not FHEATN S EHE NN A T SBHER -
affect the time he can devote to the Company’s affairs.

(vi) Board Meetings (vi) EEE2ER
During 2012, the Board met four times. The attendance of Directors is NZT——F BEFLRITOREE  EFH
as follows: HREERMT
Number of meetings
held while Number of
being a director meetings
THESE attended
Names #E BITHNERRE HESBRE
Chairman *E
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. ZThEM+ - S.B.S., J.P. 4 4
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael RIEBESF A (7T #BEE)
(Chief Executive Officer) 4 4
Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew SN ER S A (ST A )
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer) 4 4
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily EIER Lt (&ERE
(Chief Operations Officer) 4 4
Non-executive Directors FEHITES
Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael KIHM Lutz Hans Michael 5t 4 4 4
Dr. LEE Delman FEAE A
(appointed on 29 October 2012) (R-F——fF+ A=+ NHAEZF) 1 1
Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth EFXXEE
(appointed on 26 June 2012) (R=E——FNH A NAEEF) 3 1




24  Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited & 5@EFEHAR AT

—

Corporate Governance Report X ERHEE

3) ExE (&)

(3) Board of Directors (continued)

(vi) EBEE3(H)

(vi) Board Meetings (continued)

Number of meetings

held while Number of
being a director meetings
ERESR attended
Names "5 BITHEERRE HESBERE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. CHAK Hubert B so i 4 3
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay [REER S 4 4
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy SRS A 4 4
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. (ERVE- SN 4 4
Mr. TSE Kam Keung FiERoR A
(appointed on 4 March 2013) (R-F—=4= AU HEZFF) 0 0
Directors resigned/retired during 2012 R-B——F8E BEEE
Ms. TSANG Oi Lin, Ophelia BEELL
(resigned on 26 October 2012) (R-F——F+ A=+ NHEHE) 3 2
Mr. IP Sing Chi, Eric EARESRE
(resigned on 26 June 2012) (R=F——FNH =+ AT 1 0

(vi)) ESREBAFIRE FARBNEE
EEPHABEERE—HENARH A PR

(vii) Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Accounts
The Directors acknowledge responsibility for preparing financial

statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group. In this regard, the Directors have confirmed that appropriate
accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and
that judgments and estimates made were prudent and reasonable in
light of the information provided by management.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012, the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong were adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the applicable laws were complied
with.

The Board has prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis and is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that might cast doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor of the Group are
disclosed in the “Report of the Auditors”.
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(3) Board of Directors (continued)

(viii) Directors’ and Auditors’ Attendance at the Annual General

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

Meeting

The Chairman of the Board, Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.
and all four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee), Mr. CHAU Tak Hay (the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny,
J.P. (the Chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr. CHAK
Hubert (the Chairman of the Investment Committee) attended the
Company’s Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held on 18 May 2012.
They were accompanied by the three Executive Directors. Three
Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. TSANG Oi Lin, Ophelia, Mr.
KIHM Lutz Hans Michael and Mr. IP Sing Chi, Eric, were unable to
attend the AGM as Ms. TSANG and Mr. KIHM had other business to
attend to while Mr. IP were overseas.

The Company’s external auditor, KPMG, also attended the AGM
to confirm the financial statements of the Company and to answer
questions from shareholders.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

All newly appointed Directors attend an induction programme to
enhance their knowledge and understanding of the Group’s business
and operations and their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and regulatory requirements.

During the year, two such programmes were arranged for Messrs.
YING and LEE, the two new Non-executive Directors.

During the year, the Company also arranged a 6-hour in-house
conference to brief Directors on corporate objectives, business
strategy and disclosure obligations. In addition, Directors were
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
refresh and enhance their knowledge and skills.

All Directors have provided their training records pursuant to the
New Code.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance to indemnify them for liabilities in respect of legal
actions arising from its day-to-day business activities. During 2012,
the insurance coverage was doubled, from HK$50 million to HK$100
million, at the instruction of the Board.

Board Evaluation

The Board recognizes the benefits of regular evaluations of its
performance. During the year, an evaluation covering Board and
Board Committee performance was conducted by the Corporate
Governance Committee with the assistance of the management
team. Areas covered included the overall effectiveness of the Board
and its Committees, in particular the appropriateness of their
terms of reference and delegations, attendance, participation and
contributions both during and outside meetings. The conclusion was
satisfactory.
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(4) Board Committees

(4) EB2Z8TE

The Board has established the following committees: Audit, Corporate
Governance, Remuneration, Nomination and Investment Committees.

BEQERUTIEES :
g ¥FMEEE - T%ééﬁ‘%&&ﬁéééo

(i) Audit Committee () BRZEE

The Audit Committee consists of all five Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The Audit Committee oversees the overall financial reporting process
as well as the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal
controls. In addition, it is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board for the appointment, reappointment or removal of the
external auditor. It also reviews and monitors the external auditor’'s
independence and objectivity as well as the effectiveness of the audit
process to make sure that it is in full compliance with applicable
standards.

During 2012, the Audit Committee met twice. The attendance of

members is as follows:

BRRECRLBARBEUIENTESMEN -

BREEGEFARNERBMBRSEF LA
ERRRRERARAY - I BREZEGTE
BERERE  ENRERBRINEREE - mESR
SRELEREE - ERZE SRR MEEIN
EBRYMERBEYMEE  URBKEFREEE
O FEILREREZRIR P2 EE ST E AR -

Number of meetings

held while Number of
being a member meetings
EEEER attended
Names #E BITHNERRE HESBRE
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman) — $&# 54 (F/E) 2 2
Mr. CHAK Hubert Bt 2 2
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay [RiEER I 2 2
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. AL B A - )P
(appointed on 27 March 2012) (R-F——F=H -1+ HEZF) 1 1
Mr. TSE Kam Keung FRoR T
(appointed on 26 March 2013) (R=—F—=F=H —NAEZ(F) 0 0
Mr. LAl Daniel BB E
(resigned on 1 January 2012) (R-FE——F—FH—HFF) 0 0
During 2012, the Audit Committee performed the following: RIT—ZF  BERZEGYHET I ITE:

(a) reviewed the Group’s financial statements for 2011, the draft
2011 annual report, the draft 2011 results announcement and
the proposed 2011 final dividend and recommended them to

the Board for approval;

(b) reviewed the Group’s interim financial statements for the 6
months ended 30 June 2012, the draft 2012 interim report,
the draft results announcement for the 6 months ended 30
June 2012 and the proposed 2012 interim dividend and
recommended them to the Board for approval;

(a) BEAKE-_Z——FHBHRE
FEREFAR T ——FEERNSEHA

—=_
—=

kT ——FRIRARARE - WHtmES
SIREEZA A

(b) BRALEHZE-_Z——EXA=1THIX
BRAMF BT EHRE —F——FPHRE
ERA BHE_Z——FXA=+AHINA

ARBENEERAR T — —FHURP R
Witk E =R ER A
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(4) Board Committees (continued)

(i) Audit Committee (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(g)

(h)

reviewed and approved the various audit plans and audit
reports prepared by the Internal Audit Department of the
Company;

reviewed the report prepared by the Internal Audit Department
on the internal control system based on the COSO (The
Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway
Commission) to ensure that the internal control and risk
management is adequate and effective;

reviewed the connected and continuing connected transactions
to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules, in particular that
the annual caps as set out in the relevant announcements have
not been exceeded;

met with the internal auditor independently to discuss the work
of the Internal Audit Department;

met with the external auditor, KPMG, independently to discuss
the financial reporting and internal control issues encountered
during the 2011 annual audit; and

reviewed the proposed audit fee for 2012 and recommended
the re-appointment of the external auditor to the Board for
consideration and final approval by shareholders at the annual
general meeting.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During 2012, the audit and non-audit fees payable/paid to KPMG
were: an audit fee of HK$0.85 million (2011: HK$0.78 million) and
a non-audit related service fee of HK$0.06 million (2011: HK$0.04
million). (The latter represented taxation service fees.)
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(4) EZZEE (&)

(4) Board Committees (continued)

(ii) Remuneration Committee

(il FMESS

The Remuneration Committee consists of one Non-executive
Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and Senior Management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met four times. The
attendance of members is as follows:

FEEEh - RMITEERM BB IENTT
EEAK -

FMEZE S EREZ RS RE RN HBR
RIRRE  MES GRS

Number of meetings

held while Number of

being a member meetings

EEEER attended

Names ®E BITHNERRE HESBRE

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay (Chairman) EERRSEE (/) 4 4

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy BB S A

(appointed on 27 March 2012) (R-F——F=H -1+ HEZ(F) 3 3

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. FThEE 4 - sBS, JP. 4 4
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. [CIAvEE=S771 SN =3

(resigned on 27 March 2012) (R-ZFE——F=H 1+ HEHF) 1 1

At these meetings, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration package of the Deputy Chief Executive Officer,
reviewed the remuneration package for the renewal of the
Chief Executive Officer’s contract and revised the discretionary
performance bonus scheme for staff of the Company and its
subsidiary companies.

Remuneration paid to Executive Directors and Senior Management
Remuneration paid to Senior Management in 2012 by band is as
follows:

FMZ BRIt E R LRE BT R R M
B BETHARNFINGEAEEEAY -
RERT AR B R EME LR B THBISERIELL

FHal e

AU TESRSREEEXTOHH
R-FB——F  ASRERETOFHHINFHL
TEE

Number of staff

ETAH
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 78 155,000,001 7T — & #5,500,0007T 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 78 153,000,001 7T — 515,000,000 -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 78 152,500,001 7T — &1 3,000,000 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 78 #52,000,001 7T — & #2,500,0007T 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 78 #51,500,001 7T — & #2,000,0007T 1

Details of remuneration paid to Executive Directors in 2012 are set
out in Note 9to the Financial Statements.

R-B-—FEXNFROEEOHFIFEIR
BT RRATAE9 ©




Annual Report 2012 —ZE——4 43§ 29

Corporate Governance Report X ERHEE

(4) Board Committees (continued)

(4) E%;E (II‘E)

(iii) Nomination Committee

(i) REEES

The Nomination Committee consists of the Chairman of the Board
and two Independent Non-executive Directors.

The duty of the Nomination Committee is to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and to select suitable candidates
for appointment as Directors by the General Meeting. The selection
of candidates is based on professional qualifications and experience.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held three meetings.
The attendance of members is as follows:

REREEMESEIRRMBBILIINTES
R -

REZEGNREABINEETZORRE RER
e WEESEAE  URRERAE DEHEE
REFEGKE - EXERRERBREANE
R o

P RETARURGTRER  BEMEE
e

Number of meetings

held while Number of

being a member meetings

EEEER attended

Names #E BIHERIE HESZBRE

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. (Chairman) ISR P (FF) 3 3

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy SEHEE S A 3 3

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. ZThEH L 0 SB.S, JP. 3 3
The Nomination Committee met in March 2012 to review and REZEEN T —_F-A8TEH% LFE*?

recommend all retiring Directors for re-election by shareholders at
the Company’s annual general meeting on 18 May 2012. On 26
June 2012, it met to consider the resignation Mr. IP Sing Chi, Eric,
a Non-executive Director and recommended Mr. YING Tze Man,
Kenneth, to the Board for appointment as a Non-executive Director.
On 26 October 2012, the Nomination Committee, by circulation,
accepted the resignation of Ms. TSANG Oi Lin, Ophelia, and
recommended Dr. LEE Delman to the Board for appointment as a
Non-executive Director. On 13 November 2012, it met to discuss the
renewal of the CEO’s employment contract.

WEZEHR_ZE—ZFRATN\BRTHAEAR
%?ﬁiﬁ?tﬁ\ﬂxiéﬁﬁﬁzFﬁﬁﬁ&%
F-RE——_FXNAZt+H RELEeHE
TEH - UEEIENTEFERTLENRZ -
WRAEEFFERETRFEERFENTES -
RZBE-—ZF+HZ+ B RELZE52RAMZE
MdEn s  BEMEEELLTHNEF - WER
EEEEAFRAAE T AFERTES - KR =Z
——F+—RA+=0 REZEgEHgE &
MEBTREHNEREL -
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(4) Board Committees (continued) (4) EEZXEE(E)
(iv) Investment Committee (iv) REZES

The Investment Committee consists of one Non-executive Director BRELZESH BN TES R =EBULIENTT
and three Independent Non-executive Directors. EERAEK -
The duty of the Investment Committee is to oversee the Company’s KREZEeNBRESEEARARERITARNK
investments in financial instruments and the management’s BN EEBHNTEEEMTEIREBREIIME
execution of the investment policy guidelines laid down by the W, e
Board.
During the year, the Investment Committee convened two meetings. FR - RELZESLEHEMAEE  TEHEXR
The attendance of members is as follows: O

Number of meetings

held while being Number of
a member meetings
EEEER attended
Names #E BITHNERRE HESBRE
Mr. TSE Kam Keung (Chairman) HERoR L ()
(appointed on 26 March 2013) (R=—F—=9F=H - NAEZ(F) 0 0
Mr. CHAK Hubert Bimsgsf
(resigned as Chairman on 26 March 2013) (R=—F—=%#=H =4 NABTL/E) 2 2
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay [RERR L 2 2
Dr. LEE Delman FEAE A
(appointed on 20 November 2012) (R-FE——F—H=-+HEZT) 0 0
Mr. LAI, Daniel BB E
(resigned on 1 January 2012) (R-E——F—FH—HEF) 0 0
The Investment Committee met in March 2012 to review the BREZEGR T —_F=-ARTEH  UER
execution of the investment policy by the management and met BEEEHREBRNAITER HEENABKX
again in September to review the investment guidelines laid down by B118H  LWEEMSES  BRAIZEFGHED

the Board in view of the volatile market. ZEEa| -
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(4) Board Committees (continued)

(v) Corporate Governance Committee
The Corporate Governance Committee consists of all five
Independent Non-executive Directors. The main responsibilities of
the Committee are to ensure and uphold good corporate governance
standards of the Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year of 2012, the Corporate Governance Committee met
once. The attendance of members is as follows:
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(4) EZZEE (&)

(v EEERZREE
CREAZEERRBABBIFNTERM
B SEBRAGHARTRAMER DGR
CHEAKF «

o REHEENT

Number of meetings

held while Number of

being a member meetings

EEZEER attended

Names #E BITHEBRE HESBRRE

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman) — $&# 54 (F/E) 1 1

Mr. CHAK Hubert Bhag st 1 1

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay [RERR L 1 1
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. AL B A - )P

(appointed on 27 March 2012) (R-F——F=H -1+ HEZ(F) 1 1

Mr. TSE Kam Keung FRoR T
(appointed on 26 March 2013) (R=—F—=F=H - NAEZ(F) 0 0

On 14 August 2012, the Corporate Governance Committee reviewed
the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance, the
Group’s whistle-blowing policy and procedure, the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and the relevant
compliance disclosures in the 2012 Interim Report.

(5) Company Secretary

Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred, the Group’s Chief Financial Officer, is the
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. LI has confirmed that during the
year he has taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional training.
Mr. LI's biographical information is in the section of “Directors and Senior
Management” on page 19 of this annual report.

(6) Shareholders’ Rights

(i) Convening of Extra-ordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders
Pursuant to Article 65 of the Articles of the Company, shareholders
holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the
Company can convene an extraordinary general meeting as provided
by Section 113 of the Companies Ordinance by depositing a written
request stating the objects of the meeting to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company.

R-ZZB-——FN\A+WA  bEELZESRN
AEBEMDEERBRERER - NREBERNRRIK
RREF  EFNEIIRNEFRERRUAR-F
——FhERENRENERARER -

(5) RAIWE

REBNBEEFTRELETIRARANAAMELR
o FERARR - RNFAM B DRIG/NEH2EE
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ERERERE |5 -
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(6)

(7)

(8)

Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

(ii) Procedures for making proposals at Extra-ordinary General
Meeting
The shareholders requesting an extra-ordinary general meeting
are required by the Company’s Articles to specify the shareholding
information of the shareholders, contact details and proposed
businesses to be dealt with in the general meeting with supporting
documents. All documents must be duly signed by the shareholders
making the request.

(iii) Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries either by post, fax or
email, together contact details, such as postal address, email or fax
number, to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office. Upon receipt of such enquiries, the Chief Executive
Officer is required to review them and to organize special Board
meetings to discuss the issues as necessary. The Chief Executive
Officer is also required to reply to all such enquiries in writing.

No request for an Extra-ordinary General Meeting and no written enquiries
from shareholders were received during 2012.

Communications with Shareholders and Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its shareholders
to enhance understanding of the Group’s business performance and
developments. The Company also arranges company visits and one-
on-one meetings with institutional investors, analysts and the media to
discuss the Company’s latest developments.

On 20 April 2012, the Company held a forum for its individual
shareholders at the Company’s Board room to brief them on the 2011

annual results and the latest corporate developments.

Eleven meetings with institutional investors, analysts and the media were
arranged during 2012.

Board members, in particular the Chairmen of the respective Board
Committees, and Senior Management of the Company attended the AGM
held on 18 May 2012 to answer questions raised by shareholders.

Corporate Information on Website

The Company has uploaded the following documents in the corporate
website as well as the website of the HKEX:

(i)  The up-to-date constitutional documents of the Company (i.e. the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company); and

(i)  The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director.

There was no amendment to the constitutional documents during 2012.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has
its registered office and principal place of business at 11th and 12th Floors,
Tower B, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of front-end GETS
services for processing certain official trade-related documents.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to

the major customers and suppliers respectively during the financial year is as
follows:
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EXEEREE

EEEMARZEFSFEREE  BRARE_F——F
T A=t - BULFENEERHBRE -

FTEEEMT

ARAE B —HREBFMK LW IABTEBAEN RG] - AR
RIMAMREER T EE £ BN NEBZENET LB
FEmTOBEIER12IE -

FEEK

RNATN T BES S IRERIEE TRFE SRR
GETSART °

ARFMBRRINEZEH R EMFBERRM B RERA
15

TERFRHAERS

RAMBRFREEEEF RMAEED BB EARENHEERER
REEARWT

Percentage of the Group’s Total

HAEERENEIL
Sales Purchases
SHEHE REBEE
The largest customer BAEP 10.5%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFART 15.7%
The largest supplier BAHLRER 7.9%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAEEREE 22.6%
One of the five largest customers and suppliers was the Government, a HPE -2 A REPRHEARBN  HR_Z——F1A

substantial shareholder of the Company prior to 25 October 2012.

During the period from 1 January 2012 to 24 October 2012, the Group
generated revenue of HK$660,000 for calls received from the ROCARS
Contract. On the other hand, the Group incurred HK$3,968,000 with the
Government for counter collection service, mailing and courier charges in total
under the normal course of business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state of
the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 49 to 123.

T RARMA/ARREERR -

RZE——F—A—HAZ2-FT——-F+A-+WHHELHHE -
ZK%IW;EROCARSS%@&%%@aﬁﬁa@ﬁﬂﬁﬁxﬁﬁ BEBAR
75 1660,0007T © B - $El@ﬁﬁ2$ﬁwﬁz1¢ﬂm C 2B
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A HB13,968,0007T °
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RATEREEAZ BN BOAORHNFEAOAEFE 123
MIEEHEA -




34 Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited B 5BETE5ERAT

—

Report of the Directors EE R EE

Transfer to Reserves R B EE

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of HK$80,262,000 RETAR B AT B BRHEFE B A FEAG V3 1178 1£80,262,0007T (=&
(2011: HK$70,065,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in ——4F : #WE70,065,0007T ) B EE B T B E o EiEEE
reserves are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to the HIFHNM SRR ANGEERETEK -

financial statements.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK 6.9 cents EEERBEIRNEE T —F+-_A=1t—RHIEEXN
per share (2011: HK 6.1 cents per share) for the year ended 31 December KEIR B FH6.9BI( =T ——4F : FR6.1B{) -
2012.

Fixed Assets EEEE

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note 14 to the EEEERNFENNE I FIEH NI IERERAZ14 -
financial statements.

Share Capital B

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are RABRFERR IR S EF BRI SRR E25(b) °
set out in Note 25(b) to the financial statements.

Shares were issued during the year on exercise of share options. FR RN REBIREETEm TR
Directors =)

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were: FRARBERAREET)ZAHNETESOT -
Chairman and Non-executive Director ITERIHTES

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. ZJh/EE+ - SB.S., J.P.

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael RIERLE

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew EMETE A

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily BIER 2+

Non-executive Directors FHTES

Ms. TSANG Oi Lin, Ophelia (resigned on 26 October 2012) BEBERT (R -F——F+ A=+ NHEFHE)
Mr. IP Sing Chi, Eric (resigned on 26 June 2012) ERBEE(RZFE—ZFANAZFNHAEE)
Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael KIHM Lutz Hans Michael /4

Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth (appointed on 26 June 2012) BFNEE (R~ —F N -+ NEAEEF)
Dr. LEE Delman (appointed on 29 October 2012) TEARE L (R -E——F+H -+ EAEEF)
Independent Non-executive Directors BAKEHITES

Mr. CHAK Hubert 2o

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay FAERR A

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy EHRRELE

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. Al &S - )P,

Mr. TSE Kam Keung (appointed on 4 March 2013) BERRAEE (R T — == AIAEZ(T)
Biographical details of the Directors at the date of this report are shown on RAREET)RAPETNESHERABEHRFI3ERE
pages 13 to 19. %198 -
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Directors (continued)

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, Mr. CHAK Hubert and Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok,
Jimmy shall retire from office in accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, and Mr. YING Tze Man Kenneth, Dr. LEE Delman and
Mr. TSE Kam Keung shall retire from office in accordance with Article 92 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Ms. TSANG Oi Lin, Ophelia was appointed as a Non-executive Director on
20 April 2011 and is a civil servant of the Government, and accordingly may
be regarded as interested in all contracts and other dealings between the
Government or the Financial Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”) and members of
the Group during the year under review.

Dr. LEE Delman was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 29 October
2012 and is the President and Chief Technology Officer for TAL Apparel
Limited and accordingly may be regarded as interested in all contracts and
other dealings between TAL Apparel Limited and members of the Group during
the year under review.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which the Company or
its subsidiaries was a party, in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Service Contract

During the year, none of the Directors had any existing or proposed service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Details of the three
Executive Directors’ employment contracts are set out below.

On 24 June 2009, the employment contract between the Company and Mr.
WU Wai Chung, Michael, was entered into for a period of three years and
three months commencing on 1 October 2009 until 31 December 2012 in
relation to the appointment of Mr. WU to act as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. During the three months from 1 October 2009 to 31 December
2009, Mr. WU was titled CEO-designate. On 20 December 2012, Mr. WU'’s
employment contract with the Company was extended for a period of two years
commencing on 1 January 2013, which can be terminated by the Company or
Mr. WU by giving a three months’ notice or payment in lieu thereof.

Under the employment contract of 30 August 2004 signed between the
Company and Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew, the contract can be
terminated by the Company or Mr. CHENG by giving one month’s notice or
payment in lieu of notice. On 15 November 2011, Mr. CHENG was appointed as
Acting Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and on 26 June 2012,
he was promoted to Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Directors’ Service Contract (continued)

Under the employment contract between the Company and Ms. CHUNG Shun
Kwan, Emily dated 20 March 2008, Ms. CHUNG acts as the Chief Operations
Officer of the Company. The contract can be terminated by the Company or Ms.
CHUNG by giving one month’s notice or payment in lieu of notice.

Save for the disclosed, no director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P., a Non-executive Director, has a deemed
interest in 6,320,312 shares of the Company through his indirect shareholding
in TAL Apparel Limited and 95,673,000 shares in the Company through his
direct shareholding in Eastex (HK) Limited respectively. Dr. LEE Delman, a
Non-executive Director, has a deemed interest in 47,708,873 shares of the
Company through his indirect shareholding in TAL Apparel Limited. Mr. KIHM
Lutz Hans Michael, a Non-executive Director, Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, Mr.
CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew and Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily, Executive
Directors of the Company, currently hold 1,904,000, 333,453, 441,276 and
1,026,471 ordinary shares of the Company in their own names respectively as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO.

The Directors of the Company are entitled to ordinary shares of the Company
under the Share Award Scheme and also options under the share option
schemes of the Company, details of which are respectively set out in the
sections “Share Award Scheme” and “Share Option Schemes” below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interest or short
positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, any
of its holding company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

Share Award Scheme

On 16 March 2009 (“Adoption Date”), the Board of Directors of the Company
adopted a share award scheme (the “Scheme”) to reward staff above a certain
grade in the Company (“Eligible Employees”). This scheme has replaced the
Share Option Schemes previously implemented by the Company.

Under Part 1 of the Scheme, Eligible Employees at assistant manager grade
and above receive an offer from the Company to purchase Tradelink shares
(“Shares”) at a discounted price depending on the lock-up period which the
Eligible Employees may choose. Under Part 2, Eligible Employees at Vice
President grade and above receive Shares at nil consideration but subject to a
one-year lock-up period.
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Share Award Scheme (continued)

The Scheme is valid for 10 years from the Adoption Date (i.e. 16 March 2009)
or until such other date as the Board may decide. Unless the Board otherwise
decides, the total number of Shares purchased by the Trustee under the
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the Adoption Date (being 77,830,605 Shares).

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew and Ms.
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily, all Executive Directors of the Company, are
respectively entitled to 3,358,917, 994,559 and 949,529 ordinary shares
under Part 1 and Part 2 of the Share Award Scheme subject to the terms and
conditions thereof.

Share Option Schemes

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 2 August 2000 and
amended on 11 September 2001 and 26 November 2002 respectively (“Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) and a share option scheme on 14 October 2005
(“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Directors are authorised to
invite employees of the Group, including its Directors of any company in the
Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares in the Company at a nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 per grant under the share option schemes. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company. Each option has a 10-year exercise period.

The share option schemes give the participants an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company and help motivate the participants to optimise
their performance and efficiency and attract and retain participants whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and profitability of the
Group.

The total number of share which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under all share option schemes shall not exceed in aggregate
10% of the issued capital or 77,763,250 shares at the Company’s listing
date, being 28 October 2005 (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). Options that
have lapsed shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit. The Scheme Mandate Limit may be renewed by obtaining
approval of shareholders in general meeting of the Company provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the share option schemes under the Scheme Mandate Limit
as renewed shall not exceed 10% of the shares issued at the date of approval
of such limit (the “Refreshed Limit”). Options previously granted (which may
be cancelled, lapsed or exercised) shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the Refreshed Limit.

The Company has ceased to grant options to its employees since the
replacement of the Share Option Schemes by the above-mentioned
share award scheme on 16 March 2009, but options granted prior to the
replacement are still valid and enforceable.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Under the Pre-IPO share option scheme, no option could be granted to any
grantee, so that the grantee would, taking also into account options previously
granted to him, be entitled to subscribe for more than 25% of the aggregate
number of shares subject to the Pre-IPO share option scheme.

(@) Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme approved on 2 August
2000 and amended on 11 September 2001 and 26 November 2002

The granting of share options commenced on 24 November 2000 and
has ceased upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board
of the SEHK on 28 October 2005. Commencing from the first, second
and third anniversaries of the listing date, the relevant grantee may
exercise up to 25%, 60% and 100% respectively of the shares comprised
in the option (less any number of shares in respect of which the option
has been previously exercised). The exercise price is the lower of HK$0.9
and 80% of the IPO price. On 28 October 2005, the IPO price was fixed
at HK$1.25 per share.

(b) Pursuant to the grant of options approved on 22 March 2005
At its meeting on 22 March 2005, the Board approved a fresh allotment of
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to all permanent
staff. The grant was made conditional upon the successful listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of the SEHK. The terms are the
same as those for the grants as stated above, except that the exercise
price shall be equal to the IPO price or HK$1.25 per share.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

At the general meeting of the Company held on 14 October 2005, the
shareholders approved and adopted a share option scheme (including the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme) (“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”).

Under this share option scheme, the Board has the absolute discretion to
offer any employees (whether full-time or part-time), directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors), consultants, business associates
or advisers of the Company or any company within the Group options to
subscribe for shares, provided that the total number of shares issued or to be
issued to any one grantee in any 12 month period shall not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue. The share options granted under the share
option scheme vest after 12 months, 24 months and 36 months to exercise
25%, 60% and 100% respectively of the share options. The subscription
amount payable in respect of each share option upon exercise of an option
shall be determined by the Board and shall be not less than the greater of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the SEHK'’s daily quotation sheet on the
date, which must be a business day, of the written offer of such option (the
“Date of Grant”);

(ii) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in the
SEHK’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.
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Share Option Schemes (continued) B REST 8 (&)
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) BRABBRERRESTE(E)

At its meetings on 19 March 2007 and 14 April 2008 respectively, the Board HEEENRR _ET+E=F+NBE_ZEZN\FNA
approved an allotment of share options under the Post-IPO Share Option +TIHBTHEE L EFSIERBEEXNAFBIIZERK
Scheme to all permanent staff in accordance with the terms stated above. FEETE| - 2R it e SR M T R B E B Br B AR AR AE o

As at 31 December 2012, the Directors and employees of the Company had RIE——F+ZA=+—H0 ARAREEREEHEFTX
the following interests in options to subscribe for shares of the Company Bl Al SR AR A TR D B BE AR R RS - B RAREARAE Th iR
granted for nil consideration under the share option schemes of the Company. NE BTSN TRERE - SRERER FEZSE AR
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of RE—R AN T ETBEIRAER

the Company.

Effect of options
lapsed upon
termination of No. of options
No. of options employment/ outstanding Market value
outstanding expiry of the as at per share
at 1 January 10-year 31 December on exercise
2012 exercise period  No. of options 2012 of options®
R=B-ZF RS exercised R=B-z§ Exercise BRE
-B-B tEFESER  dwingtheyear +=A=t+-H Exercise price Pl
BRATER S R MAfTEH  Date granted period  per share SRBH
BREHE BRENTE BREHE BREHA bk s SRTEE HmEn
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors -
CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew  Z}{Z12 228,524 - - 228 524 14/10/2005 10 years 1.25 -
T+
507,519 - - 507,519 19/03/2007 10 years 142 -
+&
435,384 - (435,384) - 141042008 10 years 101 1.15
+4
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily BIEE 396,845 - - 396,845 14/10/2005 10 years 1.25 -
+4
415,243 - - 415,243 19/03/2007 10 years 142 -
T
83,477 - (83,477) - 1410412008 10 years 101 1.15
+&
Employees EE 161,000 (96,000) (65,000) - in 2002 10 years 0.90 1.02
RITTF +&
40,000 - - 40,000 in 2003 10 years 0.90 -
RZZZ=%F T+
65,000 - - 65,000 in 2004 10 years 0.90 -
RITTME T
5,848 950 (482,586) - 5,366,364 1411012005 10 years 1.25 -
+&
3,009,351 (116,498) - 2,892,853 19/03/2007 10 years 142 -
+4
2,821,251 (133,550) (458,611) 2,229,090 14/04/2008 10 years 101 117
T
Total gt 14,012,544 (828,634) (1,042,472) 12,141,438

A being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares N B A B R E AR R BETTIE H BT A9 R AT (B
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised.
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Share Option Schemes (continued) B REST 8 (&)

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) BRAMBREBRESTE(E)

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names of the RYEEMEBREDAESENURZER  MESHAESE
Directors who are also the beneficial owners. BA -

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and the BRACKRBEREN S TBCR L EREREN I SEE
weighted average value per option is provided in Notes 1(p)(ii) and 24(a)(ii) to BRI BB BTG R (0)(ii) R 5E24(a)(ii) °
the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company, or B ESCPratan - RNEREAIER - A TS E B A L E
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the SR - BUEA R R E RO EREE AR R ST EM
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the SEANE IR MBS ©

Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and TEREREMATIAROREBRAONE
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares BwRKE

The Company has been notified of the following interest in the Company’s AR EENR S ——F+_A=1+—HEBARREET
issued shares as at 31 December 2012 amounting to 5% or more of the DR I E D B T BARS % ok A FRIPR N T ¢
ordinary shares in issue:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each

EREEBB0.20THEER
Corporate/ % of total
Registered individual Number of issued shares
shareholders interests shares HERTRS
BEREBRE AR EAER RHEE BHEDL
Substantial shareholders FERR
South China (Jersey) Holdings South China (Jersey)

Limited Holdings Limited - 101,125,000 101,125,000 12.90%
TAL Apparel Limited BERKRERAE 101,125,000 - 101,125,000 12.90%
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. Z=T3EH L » SBS,, J.P. - 95,673,000 95,673,000 12.21%
Eastex (HK) Limited Eastex (HK) Limited 95,673,000 - 95,673,000 12.21%
Other persons Htt AL
DJE Kapital AG* DJE Kapital AG* - 70,474,000 70,474,000 8.99%
DJE Investment S.A. DJE Investment S.A. 70,474,000 - 70,474,000 8.99%

* The Company received an email from DJE Investment S.A. on 31 July 2008 to the * RZFZFNF+H=4+—H AR E]#EDIE Investment
effect that Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG had been renamed DJE Kapital AG since 1 SAFHAEF + ZRDr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AGE B =FF
July 2008. NE+ A —HESERBDIE Kapital AG °
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

The register of interests in shares and short positions kept under Section
336 of the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by South China (Jersey)
Holdings Limited is the same as the 101,125,000 shares disclosed by TAL
Apparel Limited, its 100% owned subsidiary and the interest disclosed by
Dr. LEE Nai Shee Harry, S.B.S., J.P., is the same as the 95,673,000 shares
disclosed by Eastex (HK) Limited, his 100% wholly owned company and the
interest disclosed by DJE Kapital AG is the same as the 70,474,000 shares
disclosed by DJE Investment S.A., its 81% owned subsidiary.

Apart from the above, the Company had not been notified by any person
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2012, which was recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions

During the year under review, the Company continued to be a party to certain
transactions with the Government. The FSI was second largest shareholder
and connected person of the Company before it sold all its shareholding in
the Company on 25 October 2012. The Government, holding the Company’s
shares through the FSI, was therefore also considered a connected person for
the year under review.

Although those transactions were “connected transactions” as defined in
the Listing Rules, all of them were either sharing of administrative services
or de minimis transactions respectively exempted under Rules 14A.33(2)
and 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules from all reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements save and except for the
transactions detailed below.

On 17 December 2008, the Company entered into a contract with the
Government (as represented by The Director of Government Logistic) relating
to the setting up of a call centre and the provision of call centre services by
the Company for the Road Cargo System (“ROCARS Contract”). As explained
above, the Government was a connected person of the Company during
the year under review and therefore the setting up of a call centre on a
one-off basis constituted a connected transaction and the provision of call
centre services on an on-going basis over a period of five years constituted a
continuing connected transaction under the ROCARS Contract.
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Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions (continued)

Pursuant to the ROCARS Contract, the Government shall pay the Company a
one-off charge for the setting up of the call centre and during the five-year term
of the ROCARS Contract, shall also pay the Company a service charge per call
multiplied by the number of calls which according to the Company’s estimation
will not exceed the annual caps disclosed in the relevant announcement dated
24 December 2008.

The Company commenced the ROCARS call centre services in early 2010 in
accordance with the Government schedule.

On 22 September 2010, the Company entered into a contract with the
Government (as represented by the Postmaster General); pursuant to which
the Government provides counter collection service at designated post offices
to facilitate traders without the capability to submit trade documentation to the
Government in electronic form to hand in paper documents for data conversion
and submission (“Counter Collection Service Agreement”). To enable the
provision of the counter collection service, Tradelink, on or before 1 November
2010, supplied and installed at the designated post offices necessary software
and hardware, which Tradelink may, at its sole discretion, repossess upon
early termination or natural expiry of the Counter Collection Service Agreement.
As explained above, the Government was a connected person of the Company
and therefore the provision of the counter collection service on a continuing
or recurring basis over a period of time constituted a continuing connected
transaction under the Counter Collection Service Agreement during the year
under review.

According to the Counter Collection Service Agreement, during the three-year
term of the Agreement, Tradelink shall pay the Government a monthly service
charge based on the number of paper documents processed subject to a
guaranteed minimum payment which according to the Company’s estimation
will not exceed the annual caps disclosed in the relevant announcement dated
24 September 2010.

On 25 April 2012, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Digi-Sign
Certification Services Limited (“Digi-Sign”) entered into a contract with the
Government (as represented by The Director of Government Logistic) relating
to the supply, delivery, installation, commissioning, maintenance of hardware,
software and related services for the implementation of the Smart Warrant
Card System (“SWCS”) for the Hong Kong Police Force and provision of on-
going system support and maintenance services for the SWCS for ten years
commencing from the production rollout of the SWCS around end of 2012
(“SWCS Contract”). As explained above, the Government was a connected
person of the Company during the year under review and Digi-Sign is a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and therefore the supply, delivery,
installation, commissioning, maintenance of hardware, software and related
services for the implementation of the SWCS on a one-off basis constituted a
connected transaction and the provision of system support and maintenance
services for the SWCS on an on-going basis over a period of ten years (the
“Term”) constituted a continuing connected transaction under the SWCS
Contract.
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Report of the Directors EE R EE

Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions (continued)

Pursuant to the SWCS Contract, the Government shall pay Digi-Sign a one-off
charge in the sum of HK$8,896,905.50 for the supply, delivery, installation,
commissioning, maintenance of hardware, software and related services
for the implementation of the SWCS, and during the ten-year term of the
SWCS Contract, the Government shall also pay Digi-Sign (i) HK$70,000.00
per annum for the on-going technical support by Digi-Sign for development
and other purposes in relation to the SWCS throughout the Term and
(ii) HK$2,034,879.00 per annum for the on-going system support and
maintenance services for the SWCS receivable from the second year of the
Term with free system support and maintenance service for its first year; both
(i) and (ii) above are adjustable with reference to the Consumer Price Index
(B) released by the Census and Statistics Department on an annual basis as
stipulated by the Government in the tender documents; which according to the
Company’s estimation will not exceed the annual caps disclosed in the relevant
announcement dated 4 May 2012.

The production rollout of the SWCS was in progress by the end of 2012
pursuant to the SWCS Contract.

On 19 July 2012, Digi-Sign submitted a tender to the Government Logistics
Department (“GLD”) of the Government to supply 43,000 Smart Cards and
related services to the Hong Kong Police Force on a one-off basis; and on 20
September 2012, the tender was accepted by the Government whereby a
legally binding contract was constituted immediately between the Government
(represented by GLD) and Digi-Sign according to the terms of the tender
(the “Smart Cards Contract”). As explained above, the Government was a
connected person of the Company during the year under review and Digi-
Sign is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and therefore the supply
of 43,000 Smart Cards and related services to the Hong Kong Police Force on
a one-off basis pursuant to the Smart Cards Contract constituted a connected
transaction.

Pursuant to the Smart Cards Contract, the Government shall pay Digi-Sign a
one-off charge in the sum of HK$4,085,000 for the supply to the Hong Kong
Police Force of 43,000 Smart Cards and related services on a one-off basis as
disclosed in the relevant announcement dated 21 September 2012.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the Board has reviewed and
the Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed that the above-
mentioned ROCARS transaction, counter collection service transaction and
SWCS on-going system support (collectively referred to as the “Transactions”)
for the year ended 31 December 2012 were entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(ii) either on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable to the
Company than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rule, the Board engaged, KPMG, the
auditor of the Company to perform procedures on the Transactions which:

(i) have received the approval from the Board;
(ii) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(iii) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing the Transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the annual caps disclosed in the relevant
announcements for the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in this Annual Report in accordance with Main Board
Listing Rule 14A.38.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The Company did not have any bank loans and borrowings as at 31 December
2012.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 124 of the annual report.

Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees. Particulars of this retirement scheme
are set out in Nofe 23 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors EE R EE

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors to
be independent.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SBS., J.P.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013

BYFHTESNE LY
AATERESBUIHTERIRE L TRRFE 1306
SWBUEMEHNFERRE - FRANRAWHLIH
TEFHEBL -

BB

LEAGHAEHHFHERELE  HEFLARLEEELE
ff - ARATBRABRITHRIAF AT HESRER - 1
SAERE RS B ST B RS AT A A2 IR

AEEGW

FE
FTyEMEL  SBS, JP.

EE —E—=%F=F_-+/,<H




46  Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited 2 5&E T8 5 8RAT

Hi&E#

Other Information

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2012, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities,
other than those purchased for the Share Award Scheme (Note 24(b)).

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members will be closed from 7 to 9 May 2013, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered to
determine the shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on 10 May 2013. All transfer of shares accompanied by
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investors Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 pm on 6 May 2013.

The Register of Members will also be closed from 16 to 20 May 2013, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied
by share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, no later than
4:30 pm on 15 May 2013.

Dividend

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK 6.9 cents
per share (2011: HK 6.1 cents per share) for the year ended 31 December
2012 to shareholders subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The final dividend will be paid
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on 16 May 2013, on or about 27 May 2013.

On 10 October 2012, the Company paid an interim dividend of HK 3.3 cents
per share (2011: HK 2.8 cents per share) to the shareholders. The total
amount of 2012 interim dividend paid and 2012 final dividend payable is
100% of the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders for 2012.

The Board would like to draw the attention of shareholders to the Company’s
dividend policy enunciated alt the time of the IPO in 2005, which is that the
Company will pay out not less than 60% of its distributable profit as dividend.
The fact that the Company has paid out 100% of its distributable profit over
the past seven years does not mean that the dividend policy has changed.
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Report of the Auditors B HETREE

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tradelink Electronic
Commerce Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 49 to 123, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Report of the Auditors B HETREE

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement Z=& W EH R

Forthe yearended 31 December 2012
HME—F——F1 A=+ —FILFR

2012 2011
= —T——F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
liipsa BT BT
Turnover =3 3 232,383 206,176
Interest income FLEUWA 11,898 8,302
Other net loss Hip 5B 58 5 - (422)
Cost of purchases BREERR R (19,965) (1,747)
Staff costs BB 6(a) (89,847) (88,188)
Depreciation e (9,959) (19,517)
Other operating expenses HAaea (32,718) (29,682)
Profit from operations FES— il 91,792 74,922
Share of results of associates Ny NCTE S 2,973 5,841
Share of result of jointly controlled entity BT SRR S E RS 24 (391) -
Profit before taxation ERBLATRF 6 94,374 80,763
Taxation HIE /(@) (14,197) (10,698)
Profit for the year REERFI 80,177 70,065
Attributable to: BT AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company AATRERBA 80,262 70,065
Non-controlling interest PR (85) -
Profit for the year REEEF 80,177 70,065
Earnings per share (HK cents) BREF GBAL) 13
Basic EAR 10.4 9.1
Diluted e 10.2 9.0
The notes on pages 58 to 123 form part of these financial statements. Details FO8EEFI23ERIMEBRMBHREN—HD - BAFE

of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the w DB EIRN T AR RSB AR SFHBE N F
profit for the year are set out in Note 12. 12
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Forthe yearended 31 December 2012
R E— A A —HIFE

2012 2011
—B——fF 5
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit for the year AREF R F 80,177 70,065
Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax): AEFHM T (BRBE) :
Exchange difference on translation of: BE TS ERSEL =5
— financial statements of overseas operations —BINER B IS TRE (66) 4,080
— non-controlling interest — IR 4 -
80,115 74,145
Available-for-sale debt securities: net movement in AIHEEEEEES
fair value reserve NEEEESEFE 11,928 (1,596)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEPEMKREAE 92,043 72,549
Attributable to: AR AL FEG -
Equity shareholders of the Company RNRRIBAEREE A 92,124 72,549
Non-controlling interest FEIRRRE RS (81) -
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEIPHKSBAEE 92,043 72,549

The notes on pages 58 to 123 form part of these financial statements. FEO8E EF 123 MK I SRR —5 D -




Consolidated Balance Sheet SmEEEEER

Asat31 December 2012
R-FE——F+=-H=+—H
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2012 2011
—B——F —T—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat BT T BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEEE 14(a) 41,376 45,010
Goodwill fEES 9,976 9,976
Interest in associates Fr B & A Rl 2 16 100,010 97,975
Interest in jointly controlled entity Bl f R B R A s 17 4,443 -
155,805 152,961
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables FEUAR R 19 24,135 27,194
Other receivables and prepayments HAth FEUGRIE R TB T FE 20 43,547 21,832
Other financial assets HuBrisEE 18 265,234 225,594
Deposits with bank RITIFER 3,700 41,700
Cash and cash equivalents HeREeEE 123,552 106,317
460,168 422,637
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade creditors, accounts payable and ERBRFR - JENFRIBR
other payables E b pEf 5RI8 21 247,931 224,512
Taxation iE 8(a) 4,616 5,851
252,547 230,363
Net current assets REBEEFE 207,621 192,274
Total assets less current liabilities EERERREBARS 363,426 345,235
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Provision for long service payments RERG B 22 2,923 2,727
Deferred taxation IRIEFRIE 8(b) 1,533 1,702
4,456 4,429
NET ASSETS EEFE 358,970 340,806
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Consolidated Balance Sheet SmEEEEER

Asat31 December 2012
R-FE——F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
—B——F —T—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat BT T BT
Capital and Reserves EXRRHE

Share capital R A 25(b)(i) 156,718 156,509
Reserves H#E 201,730 184,297

Total equity attributable to equity AATREFEA
shareholders of the Company FE{LRERS AR 358,448 340,806
Non-controlling interest FEPEAR 522 -
TOTAL EQUITY B 358,970 340,806

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March KEFGN T =F=ZA- T AEREERE -

2013.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. E

Chairman ZEJy/EE L - SBS., JP.
WU Wai Chung, Michael HITEFE

Executive Director RER

The notes on pages 58 to 123 form part of these financial statements. F08E ZF 123E MBI mE e —H 5 -
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Balance Sheet EE & &R

Asat31 December 2012
R-FE——F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
—B——F —T—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
et BT T BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 14(b) 39,893 44,075
Interest in associates FT B & A Rl 2 16 79,048 79,048
Interest in subsidiaries FT{k B8 A Rl s 15 48,632 46,504
167,573 169,627
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables JREUs BR K 19 12,846 24,194
Other receivables and prepayments HipEl kE RIEf E 261,621 235,492
Deposits with bank RITIER 2,700 41,700
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEE 119,038 103,667
396,205 405,053
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade creditors, accounts payable and ERBRFR - JENFRIBR
other payables H e ERE 21 242,239 244,917
Taxation RmE 8(a) 3,313 5,697
245,552 250,614
Net current assets REBEEZEE 150,653 154,439
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBEE 318,226 324,066
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Provision for long service payments RERIS & B 22 2,653 2,507
Deferred taxation IRIEFRIE 8(b) 1,367 1,647
4,020 4,154

NET ASSETS BEERE 314,206 319,912
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Balance Sheet EE & &R

Asat31 December 2012
R-FE——F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
—B——F —T—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
et BT T BET T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARE G
Share capital R A 25(b)(i) 156,718 156,509
Reserves H#E 157,488 163,403
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 314,206 319,912

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March BEFEN_T—=F= A+ RBIERIRETIE -

2013.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. *E

Chairman ZThEE L - sBS, JP.
WU Wai Chung, Michael HITEF

Executive Director REER

The notes on pages 58 to 123 form part of these financial statements. FEO8EEF 123 A MM I B MKZA —H D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Zr S REZ S B R

Forthe yearended 31 December 2012
BEr—F——Ff-HA=+—HIFZF

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

BAARERE AR
Shares
held for
Share Fair Non-
Share Share Award Capital Exchange value Retained controlling Total
capital premium Scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest equity
Bkt
LRy ) AT FER B

BA&  RiEE RENRE  EARE  EXGE fie  REER 4t Bt E
Nol HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it BRTR EWTR ERTR EMTR ERTR EMTR BWTR ARTR EMTR AT

I8

Asat 1 January 2011 R-E--5-F-A 195,721 118217 (11,543) 5,440 3249 (684) 65,881 336,281 - 336,281
Changes in equity for 2011 “E--ENRAELEE
Dividends approved in respectof the ~ FEERHERS

previous year 2 - - - - - - (49,184) (49,184) - (49,184)
Issue of new shares BTRG 25(0)(i) 788 3232 - (251) - - - 3769 - 3,769
Fouity-setted share-based transactions  LARIEEBHRATS - - - 724 - - - 724 - 724
Changes in shares held for share award B B EEBH

scheme k28 - - (1,794) - - - - (1,794) - (1,794)
Vesting of awarded shares BRRAER - - %1 (579) - - - 3n - 3n
Lapse of share options BRELK - - - (19) - - 79 - - -
Total comprehensive income TEERENREE

for the year - - - - 4,080 (1,59) 70,065 72549 - 72549
Dividends declared in respect of TERCHERENRE

the current year Y - - - - - - (21,911) (21,911) - (21,911)

As at 31 December 2011 and RZB--§+ZA=t-8R

1 January 2012 “2-25-f-H 156,509 121,449 (12,386) 4,542 7,329 (2,280) 65,643 340,806 - 340806
Changes in equity for 2012 “E-CENRAELEE
Dividends approved in respectof the ~~ HEEE#ERS

previous year 2 - - - - - - W) @) - @)
Issue of new shares BHRG 25(0)(i) 209 945 - (108) - - - 1,046 - 1,046
Fquity-setted share-based transactions ~ LAREEBHRATS - - - 689 - - - 689 = 689
Changes in shares held for share BRORBEAN

award scheme BOEE] - - (3,696) - - - - (3,696) - (3,696)
Vesting of awarded shares RARNEE - - 1,051 (70) - - 102 1,083 - 1,083
Lapse of share options BiRELT - - - (214) - - 214 - - -
Equity contribution from HehERIE

non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - 603 603
Profit for the year TERER - - - - - - 80,262 80,262 (85) 80,177
Other comprehensive income REEEMRENE

for the year - - - - (66) 11,928 - 11,862 4 11,866
Total comprehensive income TEERENGEE

for the year - - - = (66) 11,928 80,262 92,124 (81) 92,043
Dividends declared in respect of TEEEAERENRE

the current year 2 - - - - - - (25,859) (25,859) - (25,859)
As at 31 December 2012 H-8-=£+-=t-A 156718 1223%  (1503) 4839 7,263 9668 72617 358448 52 358970

The notes on pages 58 to 123 form part of these financial statements. F08H EF 123 MBI EHmEN —H D -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ZREHEHRER

Forthe yearended 31 December 2012
HME—F——F1 A=+ —FILFR

2012 2011
—B-—=F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Operating activities REEK
Profit before taxation BT A2 94,374 80,763
Adjustments for: SHE -
Depreciation e 9,959 19,517
Loss/(gain) on disposals of fixed assets HEBRTEEERER () 25 (18)
Interest income FEWA (11,898) (8,302)
Share of results of associates F{REs & N RISELE (2,973) (5,841)
Share of result of jointly controlled entity Pl HEHEHIE B 2 4E 391 -
Equity-settled share-based payment ARG B0 ARR (7 B R ) S A5F 689 724
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss X (as) /518 (155) 272
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale debt securities HE R B E &G E A ER - 422
Operating profit before changes in working capital REtEEE S BB AL ER 90,412 87,537
Increase in trade and other receivables and prepayments FEUBRER - E b EURFRIE
N IB FRIEIE N (18,446) (5,062)

Increase in trade creditors, accounts payable and FERTBRFR « FES B R EH A

other payables FEAS FRIEE N 27,402 4,496
(Decrease)/increase in customer deposits received BREF RS (D), & (2,805) 1,028
Net payment for purchase of shares for B EE T BIBE AR O K E R

Share Award Scheme (3,696) (1,794)
Cash generated from operations REEENRS 92,867 86,205
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHBEENEH (15,306) (7,146)
Overseas tax paid E&gINEIE (194) -
Net cash generated from operating activities REFHELNRSFE 77,367 79,059
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ZREHEHRER

2012 2011
—B-—=F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Investing activities REEH
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets HERTEEEMSRIE - 18
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale debt securities & A it HE & EHF1ERIE - 155,315
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale debt securities BB ] E BTGB AT N KR (27,591) (226,906)
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BEERTEEMY A (6,350) (5,815)
Payment for investment in an associate BB N AT IR = (10,421)
Payment for investment in a jointly controlled entity &t [E S E AL B S N B (4,831)
Interest received BUFIE 11,688 6,641
Dividend received from an associate B U N BRI RS 870 1,020
Receipts of deposits with bank UBRER1TIE 3K 38,037 77,247
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities RETBFEE (TR RETFE 11,823 (2,901)
Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds from shares issued under share option schemes 1R IEHE I AEET 2IZ1TIR D TS 1B 1,046 3,769
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Company ERARRIBRERE AR E (73,604) (71,095)
Equity contribution from non-controlling interest El2 iy Tatu ek 603 -
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEBTANRSFE (71,955) (67,326)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERRSSEEMFE 17,235 8,832
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January R—BE—HNRERRESZE 106,317 97,485
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December Rt=-ZA=+—HWEBEESRREEE 123,552 106,317

The notes on pages 58 to 123 form part of these financial statements.

SE58 A E S 123 A MM A B TS ¥Rk i) —
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Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited % 5i@%

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R3%MizE

1 Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK”). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 comprise the Group and the Group’s interest in
associates and a jointly controlled entity.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except for available-for-sale
debt securities, which are stated at their fair value (Note 1(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. Major sources of
estimation uncertainty are disclosed in Note 2.

1 FESFHEE

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R KizE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. None of these developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period (Note 32).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Transaction fees, handling fees and registration fees
Revenue is recognised when services have been provided to
customers.

(ii) Annual subscription fees
Revenue is recognised on a time-apportioned basis by
reference to the period of the subscription.
(iii) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

(v) Services income
Services income is recognised when the relevant services have
been provided to customers and is after deduction of any trade
discounts and other necessary costs of services.

1 FESFHHERE)

(c)

(d)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R KizE

1 FESFHHERE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) BIEEE

(e) Fixed assets

The following items of fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation (or amortisation) and impairment
losses (Note 1(k)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land, where the fair value of the building could be measured
separately from the fair value of the leasehold land at the
inception of the lease (see Note 1()));

— interest in leasehold land; and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed assets,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements lower of 5 years or the
remaining term of the lease
Platform hardware and software,

computer and office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Building 20 years

Leasehold land unexpired term of the lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R3%MizE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

( MEARARFERERS

(f) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated balance
sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in
accordance with Note 1(m) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby

adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R3%MizE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

(g

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 1(i) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
jointly controlled entity (see Note 1(g)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less any impairment losses (see Note 1(k)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or Company and other
parties, where the contractual arrangement establishes that the
Group or Company and one or more of the other parties share joint
control over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see Notes 1(h) and (k)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R KizE

1 FESFHHERE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

(p) BEQARARAREHERGE

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate
or the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate
or the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a jointly controlled entity, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when significant
influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see Note 1(i)) or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate (see Note 1(g)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in associates and
jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see Note 1(k)), unless classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R KizE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Goodwill

(M

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see Note 1(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in debt and
equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless fair value can be
more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose variables
include only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification:

— Investments in securities held for trading are classified as
current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends or
interest earned on these investments as these are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out in Note 1(d)(iii) and (iv).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R KizE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Other investments in debt and equity securities (continued)

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have
the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are
stated at amortised cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(k)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(k)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above
categories are classified as available-for-sale securities. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in
the fair value reserve, except foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of monetary items
such as debt securities which are recognised directly in profit or
loss. Dividend income from these investments is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(d)
(iii) and, where these investments are interest-bearing, interest
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(d)
(iv). When these investments are derecognised or impaired
(see Note 1(k)), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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1 FESFHHERE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Leased assets () EEEE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring interest in leasehold land is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESHBEE)
(k) Impairment of assets (k) EERME
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and (i) BERRAERFREREERRENRE
other receivables
Investments in debt and equity securities and other current and
non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost

R ESEERART RSB o AT
HEFBHFNELERBRABZHFRE REAMRE
or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at HIERBEW BN & EARES R ETE
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is o MBI AT FERBRERE - FE
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists, A EaE R - A2 T RIERREE BN

any impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows: T

For investment in associates and jointly controlled entities
(including those recognised using the equity method
(see Note 1(g))), the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount of the investment as
a whole with its carrying amount in accordance with Note
1(k)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with Note 1(k)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESHBEE)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) EEREGE)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and (i) BEXERBRAZHREREMGERKENRE
other receivables (continued) (&)
If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss MR E B EBEREBESERINRL ME
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an B OEERARESBESENSHERE A
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the FREEESREWER - BIEEEAED
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal TEEBEENREOEBBEENTFESR
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying BRERT R EEEMEDEFEASEE -

amount exceeding that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that
has been recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt

securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised
in profit or loss.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  fixed assets;

— investments in subsidiaries; and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates

cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R3%MizE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

—  Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see Note
1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period subsequently, the
increase is recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(I) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost less impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts (see Note 1(k)(i)).

(m) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

(ii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R3%MizE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

1 FESFHHERE)

(o) Fi5

AEEREHERARRERNELCHERERE
EHEE) - ARTHBLEERBREERABNE
BHER R AR - BNEENEM S E RS
hREENESETERNERGH - AIERTEA
SEEN R EMEERETERKE RN ES
HFER

AR RIEARFEERTIRA - AREBRR
A E2RANBR R ENTEREAIE - AR
EAEBAEFERATIANFE

BERIBEAERREDEEMBRE RGN EE
FEERAERERERENEER B ERAE
MESA FHREERGNERERMESE - B
FERIRE B IR A R A A BRI B 1R R AR
FRHBIRESEPTEL

FIAIRER AR E LA EIEHIREE (RN
RIRAT RIS ERBUE R ZIBEERFNER
MEE )1 THER - BAFFERE A THRERHER
PREE A BEIE T IR E E M AR RIERDUAN BIEH
R B ATE E R L R EIED - Wit
ERANERZREHR—HBEERMR—IER
B - WIREAE A] TR A = R IR EIR
BlR[FE—HRE AR E s R R R E EE LR
WSS 1R AL [ S B A B B © ERTE B
ANERRERZRRERAEREAREEMAN
B E R R EEAEENEERIEEERRA L
MARRRISE - MZEEREZRME-HBEER
A Al — AR TR AL - TR IS iR B
BEEANEMABE G HEER

FERANEIERERE R RS ERAREEE
HESSRLBEETR - LEERREAREES
REAMBENE  BEHBEERE EY TR
BitH -




Annual Report 2012 —Z——4&«% /3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R KizE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or
the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities
on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R3%MizE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESHBEE)
(p) Employee benefits (p) EETF
(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined (i) EHEESEMNEAEHFEKRTEINHER

contribution retirement plans

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits that are 7 HE B NI R B IR AABRI AR IS A HARR 45
due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the RET-@AARNEBENNEERT - e -
period in which the employees render the related service. FERLA - FEAHBEY - REHRIGEMWRE
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions B R IES BIE N MR A AME B IR HEARTE
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of M EIRI - MEEEN RS ENMmEKE
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the Ao Bl BREEFERIIRENER -

associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share based payments (i) RGO BERHZM
—  Share Option Schemes and Share Award Scheme —  BRETEIRR SR E

The fair value of share options and awarded shares BEREEENRNZ R TRENE
granted to employees in an equity-settled share based Rt K BRI D AT ESERAEE
payment transaction is recognised as an employee cost AR - TR = B E AN B S EAEE
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within BIEN - ERIETN S - RFETIRER
equity. In respect of share options, the fair value is H BB A0 e — AT AT | B E (B
measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes model, B - WK Z BB R R IR L E
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which a8 - BB TS @ AP ERE
the options were granted. In respect of awarded shares, B B HR RO U T B % () B 2 A 32 00K,
the fair value is based on the closing price at the awarded KitE - BEEAFERBIGEME o
date and any directly attributable incremental costs. Where BHZEZEERERERRME - &
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before EEBERERBOSARE  BREN
becoming unconditionally entitled to those share options BERMD AT AT EREERBHA
and awarded shares, the total estimated fair value of the KD AR o

share options and awarded options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options REBER » (At BB B 18
and awarded shares that is expected to vest is reviewed. BRHEE €MLK - ERBEFE
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised TERH) RET A TEME M ARAT RN
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the FERNRFERDIRFFABIR %
year of the review, unless the original employee expenses HNEEMY A TERATERAAEENR
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding N - WIEBAREEIERERE - £5
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the B HE - BRIERERERTE LGS
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect BUER S S AR R BRI T ER
the actual number of share options and awarded shares B BEERATHASES LS
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital B AR e R R B
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not BB (IR EAREEIEIEEAR) - 8
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market RS BEEANEETER &
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount for ERERERTE(ERERMOEER) -
the share options is recognised in the capital reserve until sEBEREER(EEEARZEN) A
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the 1F e

share premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Shares held for Share Award Scheme

(iv)

The shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme
(“the Scheme”) are acquired from open market. The net
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “Shares held for Share
Award Scheme” and deducted from total equity. When the
awarded shares are transferred to the awardees upon vesting,
the related weighted average cost of the awarded shares vested
are credited to “Shares held for Share Award Scheme”, and
the related employment costs of the awarded shares vested
are debited to the capital reserve. The difference between the
related weighted average cost and the related employment
costs of the awarded shares is transferred to retained profits.
Where the shares held for Share Award Scheme are revoked
and the revoked shares are disposed of, the related gain or
loss is transferred to retained profits, and no gain or loss is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Provision for long service payments

Provision is made for potential long service payment obligations
that may arise upon cessation of employment of the Group’s
employees in the future, to the extent that there is a reasonable
probability that the amounts are likely to become payable.
Such provisions are made on a systematic basis, taking into

consideration the salary and years of service of the employees
who may qualify for such payments in the future based on their
past services rendered.

1 FESFHHERE)

(p) EEEF ()
(i) RO EBTEFENRE

(iv)

IR BT &) ([ 58] ) R THE8
BAMMS - ENREFR(BEENER
FEAE IR 0ARA) 25 BT B R 85 E
HBED | - WS B AR - AR
NEER  FRRNHSEETERBDE -
BRIC BB ZBA G WAER I T AE
FEATRERD EREBIHENERN ] ERE
BRSO BRI E B RARI B AR REET N
B o SZEDAS 17 BV AR A DN T 19 AR AN BEAR R 0E
ERANEZEGEBEZREET - WRKH
REYHERARRO B - BREROE
EBRE  AEBAESEAREREN - A
SRR RIEREE

RS T

7R I SR B R SRR 1 T A AL
EERDBS S RHIELEE  BXER
BARETEMNERR - XS RERER
A BRI E IR S 1R BB E R
B OHIRBHES - ARG
HEEE -
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1 FESFHHERE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

(@) SNEBRE

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

FANIMNER R HE ARNERIBE o LASMNE
AHENEBEERAEYEREPRNERR
H o ERBERRER AR -

VAR SR AT E R INEFF BT B E R B ETHIR
Z 5 BEHERITE o AR TEFIBRNINEFFEH
AERBEDAEERATERHNERRE -

SO Tt R TR B B VB E A R
% AEAMKAR (RERAH-SFRE A
— B2 I AR TR A AL )
RIS BRRRT E SR E AN - EHER
REb R E S TR - 1 EIA R 5 25050
oA S

M EINE TSR - EZINA KT BRI RATE
HEFMRERLERER - dEREERaR
®E -
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESHBERGE)
(N Related parties ( BEBAT
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are M EFEHREMS £ NBERT BEAT
considered to be related to the Group if: GRS AR EBA R AL
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related (@) FATHEAFREKE BEAREBFRH
to the Group if that person: B - Nz AT
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () HEBAEEZ PEHIE LR b
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (il HAEEEEATES K
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) AAEESIAEEGARNEZEEA
Group or the Group’s parent. 8o
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) WARFE THMEREMT - AR AEAER
conditions applies: B
(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same group () ZHEERAEEAR—SENKERF
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow (ARG MBRARKBRKEBA
subsidiary is related to the others). AR E AR -
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (il —EEEAS —EBNHERAINEE
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a TtE(HS—EEAKERFNEEE
group of which the other entity is a member). TREATIRBE ARISE &) o
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (i) FEAEREAERE=FTHEERE -
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (v) —EERAF=-FEENSELE T
entity is an associate of the third entity. S—ERAZE=ZSTEENHENR] -
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit (v) ZEBRREHEMNTAEEESSHEK
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the EEBBOEENESHBEEN
Group. £
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (i) ZREBESZHIALI(r)(a) PRI AT
identified in Note 1(r)(a). SRR o
(vii) A person identified in Note 1(r)(a)(i) has significant (vii) RHFEEI(r)(a) ()RS B A E
influence over the entity or is a member of the key BHALT  HEZEE(HZEE E’J
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the BRARHTEEREASR
entity).
Close members of the family of a person are those family EALTREBRER B0 2 2% A L%
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced BERISGNREKE @ X ATEHZER

by, that person in their dealings with the entity. RHHENREKE -
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Cash and cash equivalents

®

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

(s)

®

RERAEEE
ReLReFERBERTETERS  RNR1TR
Hi M BB ERERRABER LR RENS
HREWEHLSRBLRE  HEAZDER
WARERX - WHER AL =EARDIE -

7B
EEDBRABRERM2ENE S BAB SR -
TRESR A B AR T AR EES BES R D H
RiMEERBMERRATARAZSEERA
BB IS ERITIHEE ©

REBRBHE - EHNEREENBIEHEEE
B} ENEESBAEBEUNEESEUAREER
KRS - £AERFIE  TRHRASEHA) -
DHEEMBRFEREARAN T A REERRIE
EEE*EMHWF?I\ ° ﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁ?jfﬁgiﬁﬁ’]%&
DEHRGER LA CRIFERA R
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Accounting estimates and judgements

Key sources of estimation uncertainty in relation to the preparation of
these financial statements are as follows:

Goodwill

Note 15(a) discloses management’s judgement in relation to the
identification of the Group as the appropriate cash generating unit for
goodwill impairment assessment. Further to that, management takes into
consideration the projected volume and activity level and cash flows of
the Group’s businesses, discounted to present value at a risk-adjusted
discount rate. These projections are based on assumptions that take into
consideration management’s knowledge of the business environment and
their judgement on future performance. There is inherent uncertainty in
the estimation process and the underlying assumptions relating to the
future, and accordingly actual performance may differ significantly from
the projection.

Investment in associate

Similarly, in assessing whether there is any impairment in the carrying
value of the Group’s interest in Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science &
Technology Service Company Limited (“Nanfang”) and China International
Data Systems Co., Ltd (“Guofurui”), associates of the Group (Note 16),
management takes into consideration the projected volume and activity
level, future growth rate, and cash flows of the underlying business of
Nanfang and Guofurui, discounted to present value at a risk-adjusted
discount rate. These projections are based on assumptions that take
into consideration management’s knowledge of Nanfang and Guofurui's
business environment and their judgement on future performance and
underlying risks. There is inherent uncertainty in the estimation process
and the underlying assumptions relating to the future, and accordingly
actual performance may differ significantly from the projection.

Turnover

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of front-end
Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”) for processing certain
official trade-related documents. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
are set out in Note 15 1o the financial statements.

Turnover represents the value of services provided and goods supplied
to customers. The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover during the year is disclosed in Note 4.

The Company’s customer base is diversified. In 2012, one customer of
a subsidiary with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenues. These are in respect of sales of security solutions to this
customer, including sales to entities which are known to the Group to be
under common control with this customer, amounted to approximately
HK$24,385,000 (2011: HK$5,151,000). Details of concentrations of
credit risk arising from this customer are set out in Note 26(a).

ERHhET R M

RRBU SR EHRME - GRAEAEETEE LD
RGBT

SES

Biat15(a) 85 E 12 E M R A S B R 1T B ERT
M AERDEEELEATENHE - o BEE
MEBHAEEXENEREDE KT UARRER
B YEREARFAEUREYRERE - LAY
ENETERRMEL - BEBRKRDIRBEEEEHES
RENRBLES BRZBOAEMIEL - dihat
HBERERARRNERRRFERSNTHEEN -
Fi ERRIREMTENE R G HIREAZER

REBEEXTNRE

Rt - RAHEREENERE A RERBHEER
ERBERARDN(TEA D EEERBEERAERA
A(TEER D (Male)mEERmERS HRRE
B ERENREEIES REERAEEENENE
BHENKT RRERXULRSRE - WERER
BRI RYRERE - DRIEATERE TRR
Bl - BEBRRDBREERES BT LB EmNES
BRITHO TR DA S EL Y F 1R 21 3R SRR A L e 0 41 T T £
e AREET B R EEARRNIERRRFEES
WAREEY  ANERRREMBAERGHREX
Zhl °

FEFNTEEBRRMEES TBRE S
AR E F &SRB (TGETS)) < IMBARMEER
EBHNR I EIHRERMELS -

BRBOECAEPRUBEREEE2NEE - F
P ERRAEEBNE EERAEE HERBRA
24

RNRBIBFEED L - ——F - HEREE
Eﬁf%%ﬁsﬁx%%E{aZS%@uﬁzéﬁ@lo% ° B
RGFRALEEFHERZHRAR(BIERGEAR
FEA) LR EREHOERELDOHE) -
R5& K BEN24385000T( =T ——4 : B
5,151,0007T) ° KRB LA FHEFEERBFIEH
RHaE26(a) »
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4 Segment reporting

Starting from this year, the Board of Directors of the Group reviews

the internal reporting by segments to assess performance and allocate

resources. The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

E-commerce: This segment generates income from processing trade-

Security

solutions:

Other
services:

related government documents and business-related
documents. It can be further divided into two sub-
segments as follows:

GETS This sub-segment generates income
from customers using Tradelink’s
electronic front-end solutions for
processing certain government trade-
related documents.

Digital Trade and  This sub-segment generates income
Transportation  from the electronic logistics platform

Network for facilitating information flows
(“DTTN") among the trade logistics and finance
services industries.

This segment generates income from the provision of
security products, digital certificates and security solutions.

This segment comprises handling fees for the conversion
of paper form to electronic messages, income from the
provision of technical support and other project services.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with

reference to sales generated and the expenses incurred by those

segments. The measure used for reporting segment results is profit before

interest, taxation and depreciation.

DEEWE

BAFEMG  AREEFSSREB S BEHARM
BE - UFHERBRAERAR - AREEHEE T5I7]

S2FHHE
EFEE D EERERERNBEE S0 X
P SEMRRI SRS R - H AT — 537
DA THIMESLSES
GETS It S2 EpiE AR {8
BESBREEES
FHEITE SMRE X
KB T RISRRR T 2
BRI o
HIEE S I EpE AR E T
B AL MRFEEEMNESY
(DTTND)  mERESEENEAR
lil§3 TR A SR o
REFR D EPEBRMR T EMR « BIHEER
IRE TR ©
HAbRS | D EEBILARREERATTEE

THREILE - A BRI R R
HAhIE B RIGHHRMA -

W KRS E R 28O BAEREFHERLTE
ENRXMOBREEEAE - ARMEDMPEANRK
FAARIGHE - BERFTEET ] -
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4 Segment reporting (continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments results as
provided to the Board of Directors for the years ended 31 December 2012

and 2011 is set out below.

4 DEHE(K)

HE-_Z——ER-_FT——4F+_A=+—HLEFE
A AEERESSRENATZ2RDMEEERNAT -

31 December 2012
—E-——f+=A=t+—8H

E-commerce
BTHE Security Other
GETS  DTTN services solutions services Total
DTTNMRYE REHR H R #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BET T

Turnover from external customers EapN X 169,607 6,553 37,066 19,157 232,383
Inter-segment turnover o EBfE L EE - 2,130 6,264 11,059 19,453
Reportable segment turnover 2RI DEERE 169,607 8,683 43,330 30,216 251,836
Elimination of i B0

inter-segment turnover EER (19,453)
Consolidated turnover REORER 232,383
Reportable segment profit o 282 PR 52,830 5,985 13,631 17,275 89,721
Interest income FLEWA 11,898
Depreciation e (9,959)
Share of results of associates PRl NS E S 2,973
Share of result of jointly PG FE R HIEEE

controlled entity 4 (391)
Unallocated corporate income ROMBERA 132
Consolidated profit before taxation 4R & BRFIAIER] 94,374
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4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 HEBHEE)

31 December 2011
—F——Ft+ZR=t—H

E-commerce
BTEE Security Other
GETS DTTN services solutions services Total
DTTNfR®  RELHHR HAb R “aEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT BB TT BET T BT

Turnover from external customers Eapl X 171,855 8,978 9,199 16,144 206,176
Inter-segment turnover 7 EBE L EE - 2,985 6,270 5,061 14,316
Reportable segment turnover 2RI DEERE 171,855 11,963 15,469 21,205 220,492
Elimination of i B0

inter-segment turnover S (14,316)
Consolidated turnover FEORER 206,176
Reportable segment profit o 282 IR 58,069 8,851 5,355 14,540 86,815
Interest income ISUON 8,302
Net loss on disposal of HERME I EEBES

available-for-sale debt securities K18 %5 (422)
Depreciation e (19,517)
Share of results of associates FT{REsE & A RISELE 5,841
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBBER (256)
Consolidated profit before taxation 4R & BRFIAIER] 80,763
Geographical information i EEE
No geographical information is shown as the turnover and operating profit AR AEENEEEREEENARTH REEEE

of the Group is substantially derived from activities in Hong Kong. 7% AT EERS R E R -
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5 Other net loss

5 HitbERFE

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Net loss on disposal of available-for-sale debt securities H & a] 4t H & & B A 1 BI85 8 - (422)
Profit before taxation 6 BRBIADEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRBATHEFE R (GTA) ¢
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
(a)  Staff costs: (@) IEEMAE:
Contributions to defined contribution FEHFGRIRETEIBER
retirement plan 2,330 2,196
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses VARRAE 45 N0 LARR 17 /B EEHf S 1+F
BRI
— share option schemes L HE ] = 20
— share award scheme — R&in 2@ =t 8l 689 704
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TAREMBEN 86,828 85,268
89,847 88,188
(b)  Other items: (b) HAhIER :
Auditors’ remuneration ZERT I & 865 792
Depreciation LN
— assets held for use under finance lease —RIEREHERIEEANEE 143 143
— other assets —HMEE 9,816 19,374
Operating lease charges in respect of properties MENCEHERZ 1,383 1,398
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss [E 5, (e ),/ I8R5 (155) 272
Loss/(gain) on disposals of fixed assets HEBTFEENEE, () 25 (18)
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7

Income tax in the consolidated income statement 7

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

(b)

REWBERNFTEB
() FEWRBROBIER

2012 2011

—E——F —T——%

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year REEEBN ST EE 14,100 12,651
Provision for overseas tax for the year AE RGN IR 295 103
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA S EHBRR G (29) 4)
Deferred taxation JEIEFETE (169) (2,052)
14,197 10,698

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2012 is calculated at
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the

—E - FNEBNESHEBEIRT E AT RERBE
FEI16.5%(=F——4F : 16.5%)5TH °

year.
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit (b) REABRETENBEIHEGHEFR
at applicable tax rates: WERINR -
2012 2011
—E——fF —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit before tax BB R A 94,374 80,763
Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated RIRAEREE KB A A RS B =
at the rates applicable to profits RRBADEFEERN
in the countries concerned BEBIE 15,572 13,326
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR RS2 433 277
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue IERERIMA TS (1,722) (1,556)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised AERADAFIEBEORETE = 125
Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses utilised FRAAFEHEBENRETE - (1,390)
Over-provision in prior years A FEBRaEE (29) (4)
Other differences Hih=E (57) (80)
Actual tax expense FRHIES 14,197 10,698
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8 Income tax in the balance sheet 8 BEEBRINEBH
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents: (a) EEEBBERNEFBHES -
The Group The Company
AEH PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-C—fF —ZT——% —E-C-F %
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT T
Provision for Hong Kong KEEES
Profits Tax for the year FIE® B 14,100 12,651 12,351 12,055
Provisional Profits Tax paid B EEFISH (9,484) (6,800) (9,038) (6,358)
4,616 5,851 3,313 5,697
(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (b) EERWELEHELE :
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the balance EREEBERERNECHIEABNEKET S
sheet and the movements during the year are as follows: RFEREBNT :

The Group The Company

rEE N

Depreciation Depreciation

allowances allowances

in excess in excess

of related of related

depreciation depreciation

EREEH MEEEBH

MEBAE MEERATE

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BET T

Deferred tax arising from: KE TE B BELHE -

As at 1 January 2011 W-_Z——F—HA—1 3,754 3,709
Credited to income statement RURERETA (2,052) (2,062)
As at 31 December 2011 RZE—F+-_A=1+—H 1,702 1,647
As at 1 January 2012 R-ZE—-——F—H—H 1,702 1,647
Credited to income statement RRERETA (169) (280)

As at 31 December 2012 HN—B—=—H%+=-HA=+—8H 1,533 1,367
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8 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued) 8 BEEEEBERWMEH(E)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (continued) (b) ERRIELEHEEE @ (F)
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 1(0), WA F10)TEETHEK  AEEL E®
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of E2HAENBESEEREEHBEBEE LK
cumulative tax losses of HK$105,155,000 (2011: HK$103,181,000) 105,155,0007t ( ==& ——4F : ## 103,181,000
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the 70 REARKIRA A gLEVE SRR S H S
losses can be utilised will be available. The tax losses do not expire ZIBEEBLGER - RIBIRITHREES - LilF
under current tax legislation. BEETRERRE -
9 Directors’ remuneration 9 EXEf&
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong BESEATEHEICHERENESIHE BN -

Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Basic salary,  Contributions

allowances and to retirement Share-based 2012

Fees other benefits schemes Bonus* payments Total
%8 7

IR RIK PYEs] —E-Cf

ne Hitnia 7l SRR AL BN st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BETT BT BETT

Executive directors HITES
WU Wai Chung, Michael RiER - 3,500 14 1,495 220 5,229
CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew  Zf{&52 - 2,145 14 661 87 2,907
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily e - 1,988 14 273 84 2,359
Non-executive directors FHTES
LEE Nai Shee, Harry ZTE 120 - - - - 120
LEE Delman ZEA 11 - - - - 11
CHAK Hubert B 225 - - - - 225
CHAU Tak Hay AR 265 - - - - 265
CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy SEHER 286 - - - - 286
HO Lap Kee, Sunny EAvE:S 228 - - - - 228
IP Sing Chi, Eric B 24 - - - - 24
KIHM Lutz Hans Michael KIHM Lutz Hans

Michael 50 - - - - 50
TSANG Oi Lin, Ophelia LEE 41 - - - - 41
YING Tze Man, Kenneth BT 26 - - - - 26

Total @t 1,276 7,633 42 2,429 391 11,771
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9 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

9 EZEME(E)

Basic salary,
allowances and
Fees  other benefits

EXge
AR

ne Hipiasl
HK$'000 HK$'000

BT EBTR

Contributions
to retirement Share-based 2011
schemes Bonus* payments Total
RN PARR1A 5 —ZT——F
BE 5 A HEHe % st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETL BETT BETTL BETT

Executive directors HITES
WU Wai Chung, Michael RiER - 3,500 12 1,193 128 4,833
CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew  Ef{&52 - 219 2 200 8 429
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily e - 1,860 12 342 89 2,303
SEE Chi Kwok, Felix AR - 3,549 8 - - 3,557
Non-executive directors FHTES
LEE Nai Shee, Harry =TE 90 - - - - 90
CHAK Hubert iy 190 - - - - 190
CHAN Wai Yan, Ann BREM 15 - - - - 15
CHAU Tak Hay AR 210 - - - - 210
CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy SEHER 190 - - - - 190
HO Lap Kee, Sunny VRS 160 - - - - 160
IP Sing Chi, Eric EHE 50 - - - - 50
KIHM Lutz Hans Michael KIHM Lutz Hans

Michael 50 - - - - 50
LAl Daniel B 118 - _ _ _ 118
TSANG Oi Lin, Ophelia BEE 35 - - - - 35
WEBB Lawrence WEBB Lawrence 27 - - - - 27
YUEN Kam Ho, George ReH 80 - - - - 80
Total st 1,215 9,128 34 1,735 225 12,337

*

Bonus represented actual bonus paid during the year.

The above emoluments include the value of share options granted and
shares awarded to certain directors under the Company’s share option
schemes and share award scheme, respectively, as estimated at the date
of grant and award. Details of these benefits in kind are disclosed under
the sections “Share Option Schemes” and “Shares Award Scheme” in the
Report of the Directors.

Y JEATIEFANE A EBRTEAT

LIS 81D BIREBEA QR @I g B R AR ) 58
BEREARTETEENBERERER T RSFORORN
BB K ERASNEEE - LAEDFE0FED
REESWMESBARERT S K i a5 & F
DI -
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10 Individuals with highest emoluments 10 &ESFHAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2011: four) are FRN AEERSHFATEHE=L(ZZ——F : UR)
directors during the year whose directors’ remuneration are disclosed in B HEZWSORAZIOBE - EME (=T
Note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2011: ——F  —FINAT IS EENT ¢

one)” individuals are as follows:

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Salaries and other emoluments e kHEMmMe 2,891 3,372
Share-based payments AR A9 B EE RS ST A 43 67
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRETEIE 24 22
2,958 3,461
A For the year ended 31 December 2011, one of these four directors was in the N REERZF——FF A1 —HIFFE A
directorship for only part of the year. The portion of his emoluments that was EFEf AP —EZEFEMETHTRE—F - TXHHEZ
disclosed as below in aggregate with the other one individual with the highest EEFAS —ERBHALZNEAERE -
emoluments.
The emoluments of the above two (2011: two) individuals with the highest LHRARBHFAL(ZF——F : MA) OB
emoluments are within the following bands: BEMT -
2012 2011
—E-——F %
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
HK$ BT AE A
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1 -
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1 1
Over 2,000,001 #23182,000,001 - 1
11 Profit attributable to equity shareholders 11 RESE ARGET
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company ANRBIIRAERS B AL E 5 R 1E 8 %68,776,0007T
includes a profit of HK$68,776,000 (2011: HK$52,898,000), which has (ZZ——F : ##52,898,0007T) K F] - ERAA

been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. RIS mERPEE o
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12 Dividends

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the year

12 RE

(@) AFEERNAQTRESFEANRE

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interim dividend declared and paid of BE IR KRR+ AR S
HK 3.3 cents per share 3.3
(2011: HK 2.8 cents per share) (ZZ2——F : §hk2.85) 25,859 21911
Final dividend proposed after the end of the BREHEFRDEHITRA
reporting period of HK 6.9 cents per share RS B R B B A R AR B
(2011: HK 6.1 cents per share) based on FR%6.975
issued share capital as at the year end (ZZT——F : GR6.1EI) 54,068 47,735
79,927 69,646

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not
been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year

NEEB RN RS - WARNGEE B #ER
RAE-

(b) BRE—BEMBFE  ERFRAER
RN FARBDREFAEANESRE

2012 2011
—EB-——fF —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Final dividend in respect of the previous BRL—EFREE @ WHRER
financial year, approved and paid Bk R ) R ERRR B
during the year of HK 6.1 cents per share FH6.175810
(2011: HK 6.3 cents per share) (=2 ——%F : HH6.351) 47,745 49,184
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13 BREF

13 Earnings per share

(@) BREFEF

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$80,262,000 (2011: HK$70,065,000) and the weighted average
number of 765,247,000 ordinary shares (2011: 765,575,000
shares) in issue during the year less shares held for share award
scheme, calculated as follows:

BRERBADRERNAREBERBEZEA
JEAE % F78 #580,262,0007 ( — B ——4 « B
70,065,0007T) R ANF E B 8175 mR R I TS
fi% £1765,247,0008% ( —Z ——4 : 765,575,000
&) (BIDR AR SR ES ARG )FE - 7
KT

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERMMETLITRE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%
'000 '000
T8 TR
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—A—BEEITEBER 782,546 778,606
Effect of share options exercised BTN A 492 2,183
Effect of share purchase for share award scheme A& {p #ZEnEt 218 B AR (H 2 (17,791) (15,214)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares as Rt+—A=+—HBT@EK
at 31 December DAEF A5 A% 2R 765,247 765,575
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREEER

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$80,262,000 (2011: HK$70,065,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 783,448,000 shares (2011:
781,419,000 shares) after adjusting for the effect of the potential
dilution from ordinary shares issuable under the Company’s share
option schemes and share award scheme, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

BREZTRBANDORERAAFLTBREERSE
A FE {54 78 80,262,000 (= F — — 5 ¢
78 #70,065,000 7T ) K ¥ i [ B9 A0 - 15 B K
783,448,000/ (== ——4F : 781,419,0000%) (B
BRAN R R AR R AT B B (0 B2 ED AT B T R T AT
T B EE ST BEHRER)FE - T
T

HER TR (REE)

2012 2011
—E——F —F—F
'000 '000
T8’ TR
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RtTZA=1+—B8T@k
(less shares held for share award scheme) IR R E (B R A D
as at 31 December EEEEIEBAORS) 765,247 765,575
Effect of deemed issue of shares under BYERIEA R R RAERT 2
the Company’s share option schemes BT E 410 630
Effect of share award scheme RS2 BT 2R 17,791 15,214
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ A=+—H®ZEK
(diluted) as at 31 December IR B (A ) 783,448 781,419
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14 Fixed assets 14 BEEE
(@) The Group (a) &£H
Platform
hardware
and software,
computer Interest in
and office leasehold
equipment Furniture land held
Leasehold TaEH and for own use
improvements RE4 Motor fixtures BEERN
RENE KR vehicles BRE Building Subtotal BEL# Total
% BAERE RE %E g7 Mt & ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BETT BB BETT BBTT BETR
Cost: RA
As at 1 January 2012 W=8--£-8-8 10,825 270,526 508 2,931 33,250 318,040 6,018 324,058
Additions AE 293 5,991 - 66 - 6,350 - 6,350
Disposals e (399) (87,361) = (42) = (87,802) = (87,802)
As at 31 December 2012 RZB--F
+ZA=t-B 10,719 189,156 508 2,955 33,250 236,588 6,018 242,606
Accumulated depreciation: ~ RifiE
As at 1 January 2012 R=B--£-A-8 9,954 253,671 391 2,848 11,222 278,086 962 279,048
Charge for the year ERFERS 366 7,657 77 53 1,663 9,816 143 9,959
Disposals HE (394) (87,345) = (38) = (87,777) - (87,777)
As at 31 December 2012 R-B--&
+=A=t-H 9,926 173,983 468 2,863 12,885 200,125 1,105 201,230
Net book value: HREFE
As at 31 December 2012 R-B--&
+-A=t-H 793 15,173 40 92 20,365 36,463 4913 41,376
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14 Fixed assets (continued) 14 B E&EE (&)
(@) The Group (continued) (a) REB(E)
Platform
hardware
and software,
computer Interest in
and office leasehold
equipment Furniture and held
Leasehold TakHl and for own use
improvements RE Motor fixtures FEERN
nEnE BR vehicles FiR Building Subtotal MELH Total
£ FINCL B RE ¥ et & &t

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETL BRI BT BETL BB BT BRI

Cost: 23

As at 1 January 2011 R=E—F-f-A 10,302 269,773 508 2903 33250 316,736 6,018 322754
Additions RE 523 5,204 - 28 - 5815 - 5815
Disposals & - (4,511) - - - (4,511) - (4,511)

As at 31 December 2011 R_2—F
TZA=t-H 10,825 270,526 508 2931 33,250 318,040 6,018 324,058

Accumulated depreciation: ~ RiHHE

Asat 1 January 2011 RZE—4-A-H 9,667 240,962 244 2,91 9,559 263223 819 264,042
Charge for the year FRITERY 287 17,220 147 57 1,663 19,374 143 19517
Disposals i3 - (4,511) - - - (4,511) - (4,511)

As at 31 December 2011 W%
+-f=+-H 9,954 253,671 391 2848 11,222 278,086 %2 279,048

Net book value: HREFE

As at 31 December 2011 WZE—F
TZR=1-H 871 16,855 117 & 22,028 39,954 5,056 45,010
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14 Fixed assets (continued)

14 EE&EE (&)

93

(b) The Company (b) Z&AF
Platform
hardware
and software,
computer Interest in
and office leasehold
equipment Furniture land held
Leasehold TaEH and for own use
improvements RE4 Motor fixtures BEERN
RENE KR vehicles BRE Building Subtotal BEL# Total
% BAERE RE %E g7 Mt & ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BETT BB BETT BETR BRI
Cost: RA
As at 1 January 2012 W=8--£-8-8 10,305 208,773 508 2,796 33,250 255,632 6,018 261,650
Additions RE 255 4,840 - 55 - 5,150 - 5,150
Disposals e (351) (41,264) = (14) = (41,629) = (41,629)
As at 31 December 2012 RZB--F
+ZA=t-B 10,209 172,349 508 2,837 33,250 219,153 6,018 225,171
Accumulated depreciation: ~ RifiE
As at 1 January 2012 R=B--£-A-8 9,689 192,576 391 2,735 11,222 216,613 962 217,575
Charge for the year ERFERS 234 7,165 78 43 1,663 9,183 143 9,326
Disposals HE (350) (41,262) = (11) = (41,623) - (41,623)
Asat31 December 2012~ W=%--%
+ZA=t-B 9,573 158,479 469 2,767 12,885 184,173 1,105 185,278
Net book value: HREFE
As at 31 December 2012 R-B--&
TZA=t-R 636 13,870 39 70 20,365 34,980 4913 39,893
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14 Fixed assets (continued) 14 BIEEEE)
(b) The Company (continued) (b) RAT(E)
Platform
hardware
and software,
computer Interest in
and office leasehold
equipment Furniture land held
Leasehold Faml and for own use
improvements R Motor fixtures BiEERN
HEmE EHR vehicles FHR Building Subtotal HETH Total
5B BRERE "E RE BT gt s &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT AT BETT AT AR BT BT BETT

Cost: A
Asat 1 January 2011 RZE—5-A-H 9,844 208,494 508 2,780 33250 254,876 6,018 260,894
Additions RE 461 4790 - 16 - 5,267 - 5,267
Disposals HE - (4,511) - - - (4,511) - (4,511)
As at 31 December 2011 W%
t-h=1-H 10,305 208,773 508 2,796 33,250 255, 632 6,018 261,650
Accumulated depreciation: ZitiE:
Asat 1 January 2011 AZE—%-A-B 9512 179,088 244 2,685 9,559 201,088 819 201,907
Charge for the year ERTERR 177 17,999 147 50 1,663 20,036 143 20,179
Disposals e - (4,511) - - - (4,511) - (4,511)
As at 31 December 2011 W%
t-R=1-H 9,689 192,576 391 2735 11,222 216,613 962 217575
Net book value: BERE:
As at 31 December 2011 W%
t-A=1-H 616 16,197 117 61 22,028 39,019 5,006 44,075
(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: (c) MEEmMIEIFMT :
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
The Group and the Company AEEREAT BT T BB
Interest in leasehold land situated BEEZE TN FHEH
in Hong Kong held for own use FHIFE - BEEAN
under medium-term lease up to 2047 FAHEE T ER 4,913 5,056
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15 Interest in subsidiaries 15 Fr{LFMiB D R
2012 2011
—F-=F —
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Unlisted shares, at cost ELETRR - RAANME 48,632 46,504
Details of the subsidiaries which principally affected the results or assets ITEYEAEEEERNEENHBAREBOT

of the Group are as follows:

Proportion of Proportion of
Place of ownership ownership
incorporation Particulars of issued interest held by interest held by
and operation and paid up capital the Company a subsidiary
Name of subsidiary company EMALK BRIR BAAAHEN HBHREARREN Principal activity
WEARER EEHE BRRAFE HEEERASL BEEESEIHL TEXH
Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% - Certificate authority
BT REREERRA e HK$1 each services
10,000 B EE BEERERY
AELTRG
Trade Facilitation Services Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of 100% - Dormant
& HK$1 each TmER
1008 BRREE
ARG
Digital Trade and Transportation Hong Kong 135,240,000 100% - Provision of electronic
Network Limited B ordinary shares messaging routing and
YEE S ERMEERAT of HK$1 each transformation services
135,240,000 S E{E RESFHEEZR
BEITEBR Bk
Up Forward Technology Limited Hong Kong 1 share of 100% - Investment holding
ERRRERAR B HK$1 each REER
IREREEESLITRG
EClink Technology Limited Hong Kong 99 shares of 100% - Investment holding
SEHERBARAR B HK$1 each REER
Ok BREEEELTRR
FtRENSBE TR PRC HK$8,400,000 100% - Provision of e-commerce

BRRF h 788,400,007

and e-logistics services
REEFHER
ETMRRS
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15 Interest in subsidiaries (continued)

15 Fr{bHE 2 = (&)

Proportion of Proportion of

Place of ownership ownership

incorporation Particulars of issued interest held by interest held by

and operation and paid up capital the Company a subsidiary
Name of subsidiary company FEMRLR BRIR RANEREN HBHBARREN Principal activity
HEAREE EELH HRRAFHE HEEERASL HEEEZEIL TEEH
KEESBUBEERRNEN PRC RMB500,000 - 100% Provision of e-commerce
F AE#500,0007C and e-logistics services
REEFHER
TR
KEEEHRETHRERDAN PRC RMB100,000 - 100% Provision of e-commerce
H ARH100,0007T and e-logistics services
REEFHER
TR
KEENFHBEBER AR PRC RMB100,000 - 100% Provision of e-commerce
F AE#100,0007C and e-logistics services
REEFHER
TR
BMNEBASARETRIRERARN PRC RMB500,000 - 100% Provision of e-commerce
F AE#500,0007C and e-logistics services
REEFHER
TR
BN SBERIRIESRIERARN PRC RMB1,000,000 51% - Provision of e-commerce
F AR#1,000,0007C and e-logistics services
REEFHER
TR

Each of these is controlled subsidiaries as defined under Note 1(f) and
have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

# Subsidiaries not audited by KPMG. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
not audited by KPMG reflect total net assets and total turnover constituting less
than 1% of the respective consolidated totals.

Company registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise in the PRC.

A LB RENRIESINEB LR - WER

REENFBHERGA AR

T BEMBRALHHBEL B EIESTEE - ZEY
FFE 25 & T BT E S AT B e T A AR B R TR

AR EEFERABERFIERE BB ABRRAT ] %A
e

* o RPEFRAINEEELE -



Annual Report 2012 —Z——# 43 97

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R3%MizE

15 Interest in subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

On 26 March 2009, the Company purchased 58,740,000 ordinary
shares in Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited
(“DTTNCo0"), previously an associate in which the Company
held a 56.57% equity interest prior to the acquisition, for a cash
consideration of HK$22,791,000. These newly acquired shares
represented the remaining 43.43% of all the issued and paid-up
capital in DTTNCo, and as such DTTNCo became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

The goodwill recognised by the Group arose from the acquisition of
DTTNCo in 2009 and is attributable mainly to the technical expertise,
intellectual property, and the synergies expected to be achieved from
integrating DTTNCo into the Group’s existing business and customer
base. The goodwill has a carrying amount of HK$9,976,000 since
the acquisition date of 26 March 2009.

Management considers that as the Group is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition of DTTNCo in entirety, and
there are no other units within the Group that the goodwill can be
appropriately allocated to, the Group as a whole is identified as the
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) containing the goodwill for the purpose
of impairment evaluation of the goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the Group as a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use the Group’s
cash flow projections based on financial forecasts covering a six-year
period. Cash flows beyond the six-year period are extrapolated using
a medium term growth rate adjusted on the basis of management’s
best estimates. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the business in which the Group operated.
The future cash flows are discounted, at a discount rate specific to
the Group for the assessment period, to determine the value of the
Group. Based on management’s assessment, there is no impairment
recognised in respect of the provisional amount of goodwill for the
year.

Amount due from a subsidiary

Amount of HK$221,458,000 (2011: HK$203,386,000) due from
a subsidiary included in the Company’s other receivables and
prepayments is unsecured, interest-bearing at a rate not significantly
different from the market and repayable on demand.

15 Fr{bHE 2 = (&)

(a)

(b)

[EES

RZZBEAE=ZAZ+ B ARRBASEZ
SBEREBRAT([DTTNCo] » MUKEERTAA
A A35 7 56.57% IR A B0 HE 2 A 7)) 58,740,000 %
TimAk - e NEABE22,791,0007T  LbEH
IR ABE ADTTNCo T43.43% B 31T K
R - MDTTNCoFE LA AR A BIH 2 A
BARA] -

RZETNFUEEDTTNCOMTE £ I 7 5 B i
ROHETIBERAEXERN - MBERRIE
ASHDTTNCoE AREMAE EB LT P EREA
ERNHRUE ERBERHM-_ZTAF=A
ZHRBRE - EEMERE(ERE#9,976,0007T ©

EEERA BREHASEENZERKE
DTTNCoZ BRI FTE £ M R3S - M1 ERAE
HEEEEEPIEENERMEMEN - ASEE (3
RAE—(ARE)EERAES LLFENRESES
BA([RESEABM])  UEA LMEEERR
EFE -

REB(ER— AR S EEER) B AR EIBEET)
BEEBEEAEEET  HRARERERF
HfR e S B IR M TRAR S RETE - REHBN
BER SR YIREE R EREM AR
R o AEANERETEBRAEE
PR LB RMTIGERER - RRFASRE N
AHEHRARENS TR RER - NEFEAE
EWEE - RIEEREMNNE - RAFEHAR
Y ERES AR ERIRAE -

PE W Bt B A BRI

ANQ B EAERGRIE R B RERE—EER
Hi B A R FUR A #221,458,00070 (=T ——4 -
75 #203,386,0007T) * BRAGIAAEEF - 28
TEFESBITARFIERG B - WEREREE -
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16 Interest in associates 16 PTG QRS
The Group The Company
REME PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
s —E——4 —EB——fF —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T BT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR - A ANE - - 84,828 84,828
Share of net assets EiEEEFE 90,368 88,331 - -
Goodwill RS 9,642 9,644 - -
100,010 97,975 84,828 84,828
Less: Impairment loss R REEE - - (5,780) (5,780)
100,010 97,975 79,048 79,048
The following list contains the particulars of associates, all of which are TREFYEESATNEE  ZE RN HAFELITLE
unlisted corporate entities: LR
Place of Percentage of Percentage of
incorporation Particulars of issued  Group's effective shares held by
and operation and paid up capital interest the Company
Name of associate HRALE BRIRMR KEBE AT Principal activity
BENRER EEh RAFE  EBREREIN ROBEAE TEER
i-Legal Service Ltd Hong Kong 5,034,962 ordinary shares 35% 35% Provision of online
N of HK$1 each legal services
5,034,962 SR E RS LERRS
BT LBk
Telstra Technology Services Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 25% 25% Provision of
(Hong Kong) Limited &% of HK$1 each data centre services
1008 SRR EE RAEHER RS
BT SRR
Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science & PRC RMB10,000,000 20% 20% Provision of
Technology Service Company Limited F AR #10,000,0007C e-commerce services
BRMAEENBEREERAT RUEEFHERE
China International Data Systems PRC RMB198,630,000 25.17% 25.17%  Provision of disaster recovery,
Co., Ltd F AR198,630,0007T business continuity services
EEhEBEZRNER AR REKEERR
EEBENRERS
T AR ARAR PRC RMB5,750,000 21.3% - IT related services
H ARHS,750,0007T EARBIEERS
HEERHEREREELBRAR PRC RMB18,000,000 24.5% - Supply chain management
w AR #18,000,0007¢ development and services

HERERER RRH
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16 Interest in associates (continued) 16 Fr{hEg& QR (&)
(@) Summary of financial information on associates (a) BEQARNHEERBE
Profit for
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue the year
BE a1& [ g FERF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T

2012 —E——F
100 per cent 100% 462,081 (180,141) (281,940) 283,592 16,834
Group's effective interest REBERREDR 114,042 (44,656) (69,386) 68,880 4,161
2011 —T——%F
100 per cent 100% 459,694 (185,301) (274,393) 173,916 33,738
Group’s effective interest NEEERER 113,145 (46,060) (67,085) 41,422 8,299
17 Interest in jointly controlled entity 17 RAHEEIESIEROES
The Group The Company
REE EE|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F —E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT BT T BB T
Share of net assets LB ESE 4,443 - - _
The following list contains the particulars of jointly controlled entity, which TREHIERZEHEENFS ZARAFELTLE
is an unlisted corporate entity: EHe
Percentage of Percentage of
Place of Particulars of Group's shares held by
incorporation issued and  effective interest the Company
and operation paid up capital KE@EE iy |
Name of jointly controlled entity HMEIR BRTR BWER PR3 Principal activity
HEZHERER EEBY BRRAFE BAk Bk TEEH
TR IHRRBEERAA PRC RMB4,920,000 49% - Provision of
([ERTEIRIR]) (Note 17(a)) F AR#4,920,0007T e-commerce services

(Witina) RESFHERY
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17 Interest in jointly controlled entity (continued) 17 RHEEEHERNER (&)
(a) AFERIBHRIRBFEERAT (“T-Link”) (a) EEIHRRBEER AR ([T ITH
RIR )
In September 2012, the Group subscribed for a 49% equity interest RIZZE—ZFNA  AEERRI R THIRIRE
in LR TEIRBREHZ AR AR (“T-Link”) for a cash consideration FARAT ([ THIBIR])40% A » 3
of RMB3,920,000. The relevant amount was fully paid up during SREAARE3 920,000t - BHEESEDRERN
the year. It has an operation period of 20 years and is engaged in 2HI o bR TSI EAR A20F + &
e-commerce services. WEEBTRERE -
(b) Summary of financial information on jointly controlled (b) HEE4ISENTEERETE
entity
Loss
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue for the year
BE =N [ Wz FEEBR

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT

2012 —E——F
100 per cent 100% 4,219 - (4,219) - (800)
Group'’s effective interest REEER#ERS 4,443 - (4,443) - (391)
18 Other financial assets 18 HibH B &EE
The Group The Company
AEH NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—BE-C-fF —ZT——% —E-C-F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BYET T BT BT T BT
Non-current IEFRE
Unlisted equity securities I ETRAES
—in Hong Kong, at cost — B8 BERAE 57,500 57,500 57,500 57,500
Less: impairment J - RE (57,500) (57,500) (57,500) (57,500)
Current RE
Available-for-sale debt securities AT EFTER A H
at fair value HEEBEFR
— unlisted —3ETM 1,531 1,539 - -
— listed in Hong Kong —REBE LT 117,870 109,621 - -
— listed outside Hong Kong — BB LAGN
& 145,833 114,434 - -

265,234 225,594 = -
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18

Other financial assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group held corporate bonds and
designated the instruments as available-for-sale debt securities with
fair value changes recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve. The debt
securities are issued by corporate entities with credit rating ranging from

18 HttMHEE (&)

RIBE-—ZF+-A=+—08 FAEEFELXE
F YWIEEHTAEEAAIHHEABES  MEAQ
FEEZHREM2ERSTER  UBIRERNA
FEREER  CEERETOHEBESFNEENR
FAA-ZEBBB- ©

AA-to BBB-.

19 Trade receivables 19 EEYWERRK
Credit terms granted by the Company to customers generally range from
one week to one month. Credit terms offered by other companies of the
Group based on individual commercial terms negotiated with customers.

ARAB—RETEFP—EHE—EANGEEH - A%
EETEMARMGE THEERADERFRARRER
N ERIEESES T

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade HERSHER  REZAHTE  BUERROERED

receivables, based on the invoice date is as follows: fran -
The Group The Company
AEH PN

2012 2011 2012 2011
s —E——4 —EB——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T BETIT
Less than 1 month PR—1EA 18,499 24,482 11,437 21,820
1 to 3 months —Z={@A 2,721 2,439 1,112 2,240
3 to 12 months ==+=f@A 448 273 297 134
Over 12 months BB+ @A 2,467 - - -
24,135 27,194 12,846 24,194

The Group’s credit policy is set out in Note 26(a). REE Z EEBURERAT726(a)

EH LSBT R—FRKRE - Y —REEFFR
HEIR S PRIREE (ZHYEE21) »

All the above balances are expected to be recovered within one year and

they are generally covered by customer deposits received from customers
(see Note 21).
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19 Trade receivables (continued)

20

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past due but neither

19 AR (&)

B %80 B B30 45 {8 51| o S A8 4 AR 4 HH 3R Rl (B B PR M RO

individually nor collectively considered as impaired are as follows: HEER OO T ¢
The Group The Company
REME PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
s —E——4 —EB——fF —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT BT T BETT
Neither past due nor impaired 3 % 28 B TN AR R (E 19,528 22,003 9,525 19,440
Less than 1 month past due #EHD R —1E B 2,699 3,074 2,013 2,881
1 to 3 months past due B —Z=={EA 1,518 1,847 1,011 1,739
Over 3 months past due mERER =18 A 390 270 297 134
4,607 5,191 3,321 4,754
24,135 27,194 12,846 24,194

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for which there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management considers that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered

fully recoverable.

Other receivables and prepayments

As at 31 December 2012, included in the balance of HK$43,547,000
are security tokens of HK$14,793,000 purchased in respect of security
solution service to a local financial institution.

WA ERENEERBRRETFPEH %5

s p

=K

FLER ©

CSEMELENRBENERFRESZB LT,
B ZEEPRAEENBEEELERIT - REB

s -

EEERL  ARNE

BZEEBKDBARER 28R - BBARZFER

HERERE -

20 HttEWRIARBRNRIE

WZE——H+-_A=Z=+—H EHEHBE
43,547,000t © BIEA T M —EAE M S EB IR
1R 75 ZRBR TS T BEER B0 R L R I 28 75 15 14,793,0007T, °



Annual Report 2012 —Z=——443 103

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R KizE

21 Trade creditors, accounts payable and other payables 21 FE{SERFR - BN FUER e FE
The Group The Company
REME NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
s —E——4 —EB——fF —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT T
Trade creditors (Note 21(i)) FERBRRR(HT7721(3)) 11,672 15,784 7,324 15,784
Customer deposits received B EFIES
(Note 21(ii)) (HtaE21(i)) 164,410 167,215 164,410 167,215
Accrued charges and FERH RIS R E b fELS
other payables B 71,849 41,513 39,711 34,232
Amount due to a subsidiary FERTB B A T FIE - - 30,794 27,686
247,931 224,512 242,239 244917
(i)  Trade creditors are due within 1 month or on demand. () FERERFN—EAANE BN E KR ER -

22

(i) Deposits received are monies received from customers before
they are allowed to make trade transactions through the use of the
Group’s systems. Generally, customers are only allowed to incur
transaction charges up to the amount deposited with the Group.
Deposits are refundable to customers on demand.

(il DRBEAREFPEEERANEENERETES
R 5B EP WA IR - —RER - &P
ANRENRZSE  NEPRAAEESNNEZED
R - LA EREPERKTIARE -

Provision for long service payments 22 REBRBSBE
The Group The Company
AEH PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF s T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT T
As at 1 January wn—A—H 2,727 2,677 2,507 2,476
Released/utilised Effk,C A (49) (1,652) (49) (1,652)
Provisions charged to the income RURER R
statement R e 245 1,702 195 1,683

As at 31 December Rt+t—_A=+—8 2,923

2,727 2,653 2,507
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23 EERNKEF

23 Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000
prior to June 2012). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

24 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(a) Share option schemes

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 2
August 2000 which was amended on 11 September 2001 and 26
November 2002 respectively, and a Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
on 14 October 2005, whereby the Directors are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors of
any company in the Group, to take up options at consideration of
HK$1.00 per grant to subscribe for shares of the Company. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
can only be exercised after 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%)
and 36 months (100%) respectively from the commencement of
the trading of the Company’s shares on SEHK being 28 October
2005, and have a duration of 10 years from the date on which the
grant was made. The exercise prices per share for the options are
HK$0.90 and HK$1.25.

The share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
vest after 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) and 36 months
(100%) respectively from date of grant and then exercisable within
a period of 10 years. The subscription amount payable in respect of
each share upon the exercise of an option shall be determined by
the board of directors and shall be not less than the greater of:

(i) the closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in the
SEHK'’s daily quotations sheet on the date, which must be a
business day, of the written offer of such option (“the Date of
Grant”);

(ii) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated
in the SEHK'’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days

immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

24

AEERB(EERIIMERESEHBIEN) - BIRBCE
BREEEIDERNES - RUAHIERTESE([58
Eeitdl]) - BESHEABUIEATRNERR
FORMRGTE] - RIERES AR EXREEATEN
EEHESREEAMARIRNMHK - MAEBAR
LATF RiB¥25,0007 B LR (Z 2 ——F X AR ABE
20,0007t) « EE A EEHNHRAKEBEEHE

o

o

\

UREEENRORS

(a) BRRESTE
PN Sl s < YAVS il = B8 =D/ NN E 2]
ARSI (DRIN T —F A+ —HRZ
ZRF A TRAEBE)  AR-TTRF
TATHBERNERAFHBIIRBARE B - 5
It ERRERRNEERFASEEE (BEARE
ETER AR ER ) EARRERR R HOHE
Wt - RERSHREKREEEL00T - BEEK
TR T HFSA AR R — IR AR B B A AORER o

AR B R N B R A AT PR R B L O R A
RZZZRRF AT N\BERRRKROHEBAE
BEMTAEERGT T @A —+HEAR
=+XERR - HRADRIITEEH25% - 60% K
100% VB AScHE © BRI R B A B X B e
SHREITF o BRENERITEERERK0.90T
K BHE1.257C ©

IRIR E RN R AR AR B AR Rt B 5 O R AR
EROBERF T @A —+TEEAR=+R
BAR% - »HIEE25% « 60% K 100% - & A
WHFERTE - RITEBRER AR SRR
INERERBERHESFGETE - ATFIRT
FlikmE

(i) RBEENEEEHERTHXEEHR] - &
AREER)  BROREBHZMEARE
RETFIFEBR B2 PR AT (E -

(i) BEREABAREEEA  BOREEE
RS ARERAIIET B AE T
miE: &

(i) PRfpEME ©
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24 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued) 24 LIREEZENRGD RS (F)
(a) Share option schemes (continued) (a) MERRFEGSTEI(E)
On 16 March 2009, the Company adopted a “Share Award Scheme” RZTENF=A+/8 ' ARARERMT —E %
(Note 24(b)). The Share Option Schemes have been discontinued 2R e B (B at24(b)) - BBRREETEIE 421
and replaced by the Share Award Scheme. However, share options B SR AT BB » AT - BERIEEMREET
previously awarded under the Share Option Schemes remain valid B BRI DA A - W HARIEE R IE
and subject to the same terms and conditions. THIRPR -
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the () TEBEE R 1 S 1T {5 ) B AR A A R 2k I 4
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical 8] B FTEBRENKROYED N EE
delivery of shares: g
Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
TIAZAE BERYT BRENSHEH

Options granted to directors:

ERTESNBRE:
—on 14 October 2005 625,369 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
-RZZEZERF+ATHE and 36 months (100%) T
from 28 October 2005
BE-ZETRF+AZ+/\H
HEET121E A (25%) * 241E A (60%)
J361E A (100%)
—on 19 March 2007 922,762 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
-RZZET+LF=A+NH and 36 months (100%) T4
from 19 March 2007
BTt F=A+IA
HBET12{E A (25%) + 2418 A (60%)
K361 A (100%)
—on 14 April 2008 518,861 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
-RIZTN\FMA+IA and 36 months (100%) T

from 14 April 2008
BT N\FMA+MA
HEET121E A (25%) ~ 241E A (60%)
J361E A (100%)
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24 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued) 24 LIREEZENRGD RS (F)

(a) Share option schemes (continued) (a) MERRFEGSTEI(E)

Number of
instruments
TIAZAE

Vesting conditions

BERS

Contractual
life of options
BRENSHNEH

Options granted to employees:

ERTFEENBERE

- in 2002 161,000
S

—in 2003 40,000
-R-FTR=F

—in 2004 65,000
-R-TTOF

—on 14 October 2005 5,848,950
-RZETRFTA+TMA

—on 19 March 2007 3,009,351
-RIZBZLF=A+TNA

—on 14 April 2008 2,821,251
-RIZETN\FMOA+TA

12 months (25%), 24 months (60%)
and 36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
E-TTRF A=A
HEET121E A (25%) ~ 241E A (60%)
23616 A (100%)

12 months (25%), 24 months (60%)
and 36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005

BT RF+A=Z+NA
HEET12M8 A (25%) ~ 241 A (60%)
23618 A (100%)

12 months (25%), 24 months (60%)
and 36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
BE-ZETRF+AZ+/\H
HBEF121E A (25%) ~ 2418 A(60%)
J361E A (100%)

12 months (25%), 24 months (60%)
and 36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005

BT RF+AZ+NA
HEET12ME A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)
23618 A (100%)

12 months (25%), 24 months (60%)
and 36 months (100%)
from 19 March 2007
ZETEF=ATNH
HBEF121E A (25%) ~ 2418 A(60%)
J361E A (100%)

12 months (25%), 24 months (60%)
and 36 months (100%)
from 14 April 2008

BT N\FMNA+IA
HEET 1210 A (25%) * 241E A (60%)
J2361E A (100%)

10 years
T

10 years
T4

10 years
T

10 years
T4

10 years
T&

10 years
T4

14,012,544
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24 LREGEENROXZ (&)

24 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

(a) RSReEstEI(4)
BB RO B MR TS TTEE AT

(a) Share option schemes (continued)
(i)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (ii)
options are as follows:

2012 2011
—E-——F —T——%
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
IR 1TEME BRERE IETIHITEE el g
HK$ '000 HK$ '000
BT TR BT FAR
Qutstanding as at 1 January ®»—H—H
HARITEE 1.23 14,013 1.18 21,201
Exercised during the year FRITHE 1.00 (1,042) 0.96 (3,940)
Forfeited during the year FRRUL 1.19 (830) 1.21 (3,248)
Outstanding as at R+=—A=+—H
31 December HARTTE 1.26 12,141 1.23 14,013
Exercisable as at W+=-—A=+—8
31 December AT 12,141 14,013

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2012 had exercise
prices ranging from HK$0.90 to HK$1.42 (2011: ranging
from HK$0.90 to HK$1.42) and weighted average remaining
contractual life ranging from 1 year to 6 years respectively (2011:
ranging from 1 year to 7 years).

(b) Share award scheme

On 16 March 2009 (“the Adoption Date”), the Board adopted a
Share Award Scheme (“the Scheme”) as a means of rewarding
and retaining employees at the grade of assistant manager and
above within the Group and to encourage senior employees to
have, through the award of the Company’s shares under the
Scheme, a direct financial interest in the long term success of the
Company. A Trust (“the Trustee”) has been set up for the purpose of
administering the Scheme.

The Scheme comprises two parts, Part 1 and Part 2. Under Part
1, eligible employees receive an offer to purchase the Company’s
shares (“the Shares”) from the Trustee of the Scheme at discounted
prices and subject to a lock-up period as the eligible staff may

R-IT——F+-A=+—8  #@KTEHE
RAERITEEN TEE0.90T 2B 1.427T
(ZZ——F : NTHBBOS0LEEE1.42
7o) RN ERE NFEBRS RN TIFE
6F(ZT—F  NFIFETF) »

(b) BApEEREE

REZZBBAF=ZA+RB(RABH])  EFg
BT —IER A =R ET B ([5138)) - (ERER R
ISR E H B IR (S IR AR B A HIE B M0 HE - 30
FRBIEAARHARRROBEZRES - &
BEEARRNRBRDNELHZEERYBE
& o ANFEE AERAEIRUEFR(ETTAD -

ElmMEMOEK BB RE—FD - R
BE—Bn  AaERELHES—HEL 7K
FREAFAZEABEARRMRS (T ]) -
THAERE TAIERNREHMRR - RIE

choose. Under Part 2, eligible employees received an offer to be FHD BB IBES—HEL X
granted by the Trustee Shares at no consideration but subject to a FTANSREREHRD - EEZ —FREHAMH
one-year lock-up period. R o
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24 LREEENROXR S (&)

24 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

(b) Share award scheme (continued)

Dividends on those awarded shares which have already been
allocated to the existing awardees will be distributed to the awardees.
The Trustee is entitled to keep the portion of dividends declared
on those awarded shares which have not yet been allocated (or
which relate to Shares awarded to a terminated staff but for which
the terminated staff has ceased to be entitled to these Shares or
dividends on them) and in any case are held on trust for future
awardees under the Scheme. Such dividends so accumulated can
be utilised by the Trustee, subject to the written instructions of the
Company, for purchasing Shares on the market for the purposes
of the Scheme or in making other payments permitted by the trust
deed.

The Scheme is valid and effective from the Adoption Date until lapse
of the 10 years therefrom (or such other dates as the Board decides
to terminate the Scheme). The total number of all Shares purchased
by the Trustee under the Scheme must not be 10% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (being
77,830,605 Shares) unless the Board otherwise decides.

(i)  Movements in the number of awarded shares and their related
average fair value were as follows:

(b)

IR 1 B & ()

EEAE TRARRERENZBDRNHNKRERED
ETHERERERE - ZEAGERLEER R
MEIRBDAD RS (REER TR ERE
EOERMEENES  MAEBRLZERETH
BRWEZE RN AEBBRS) - WREEIER
TREBETER B ROEREE AETETAFE -
ZFEEAFIAB A L 7 RS - AR
15 ERETEIBERD - AXHETROMILAERN
HAMFK - AR ARBETIESIFARR

AFEERMBEIRERR AR - EEZ A HET
THEB(KEEGATRIEFENEMB ) X
WMo BRIFEZTERITRE  THIZTAREE
BENRNBHETSBARARRNEABHNE
BITREAN10% K A L (BN77,830,605 BERE1R )

BRRHHE RO AFEHLDHE
ST :

(M

Number of Number of Remaining
awarded shares awarded shares vesting period
RERDEE REARIHER BT EESH
2012 2011
—EB——fF =%
As at 1 January w—HA—H 6,616,663 5,152,969
Vested ] (1,021,372) (1,124,853)
Forfeited R (23,000) (466,951)
Awarded #5E) 2,800,839 3,055,498
As at 31 December (Note) R+-—A=+—8H 0.25 year to 3.33 years
(BtaE) 8,373,130 6,616,663 0.25%F £3.334F
Note: As at the period end, the average fair value per share for Bt - REIEK - GFEE B RE 58

Part 1 and Part 2 of the Scheme are ranged from HK$0.14
to HK$0.53 and HK$1.19 respectively (2011: HK$0.17 to
HK$0.53 and HK$1.17 respectively). The average fair value
per share of the awarded shares is the cost to the Company
which is based on the closing price at the award date or at
appropriate discounts applied.

BRI L FESD B 3880 14T 8
#0.537 RBEM1197 (= F——4F -
B ER0.177T 28 #0.537T KB #
L177C) » BEIR (A &K -FI9 2 FE
AR ERIRA - B 1228 F AR 7
BRI E TR E T o
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24 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued) 24 LIREZENRNDR S (E)
(b) Share award scheme (continued) (b) MRfpie@hztal (&)
(ii) Details of the shares held for the Scheme as at 31 December iy MZZE——F+-A=+—H " A:t2lEs
2012 are set out below: IR FEIEEF T -
Number of Number of
shares held for shares held for
the Scheme the Scheme
REtEIRE RETEIRE
KRB A BARA 1 H
2012 2011
—B——F —T——fF
As at 1 January n—H—H 16,099,542 15,026,395
Purchased BA 4,200,000 2,198,000
Vested 5B (1,021,372) (1,124,853)
As at 31 December BWt+=—A=+—8H 19,278,170 16,099,542
During the year, the Company acquired through the Trustee FERN - ARFBBREIABRARTSEEAS
a total of 4,200,000 (2011: 2,198,000) ordinary shares of the H 4200000 A RAAEBBKE(ZF ——F :
Company from open market at a total cash consideration of 2,198,000/%) * sF AR GHAEHR S RER
approximately HK$4,552,000 (2011: HK$2,601,000) including X ABABKA200T(ZF——F : B

transaction costs. 2,601,0007T) °
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25 EXKf#E

25 Capital and reserves

(a) BEHEZRE

(@) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing of each ZK%@@%}J&ii%X* DR E L RET
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the WG EREREEIER « KRR B IIESIBOBEY
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes ZEKRNEEFEHYT
in the Company’s individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out as below:
The Company NN
Shares held
for Share
Share Share Award Capital Retained
capital premium Scheme reserve profits Total
RRBED
BE
R R EE MR BEXRE REEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BETR BT BETT BETT BT T BT T
As at 1 January 2011 WZE——F—A—H 155,721 118,217 (11,543) 5,440 67,203 335,038
Dividends approved in respect of FEERBERS(HTI2)
the previous year (Note 12) - - - - (49,184) (49,184)
Issue of shares (Note 25(b)(ii) BAIRAD (BT2225(0)(3) 788 3,232 - (251) - 3,769
Equity-settled share-based NREEERRIAR S (Hit24)
transactions (Note 24) - - - 724 - 724
Changes in shares held for BRSBTS EN RO E
share award scheme - - (1,794) - - (1,794)
Vesting of awarded shares RERNEE - - 951 (579) - 372
Lapse of share options BBRRRERI - - - (792) 792 -
Total comprehensive income for AEEZERGLE
the year - - - - 52,898 52,898
Dividends declared in respect of AEFERBREN
the current year (Note 12) BEW#12) - - - - (21,911) (21911)
As at 31 December 2011 and R-B——-%+=-A=t-H
1 January 2012 R=—E-—%-F-AH 156,509 121,449 (12,386) 4,542 49,798 319,912
Dividends approved in respect of LEEBERR (HZI12)
the previous year (Note 12) = - - - (47,745) (47,745)
Issue of shares (Note 25(b)(ii)) BRI (HE225(0)1) 209 945 - (108) - 1,046
Equity-settled share-based AR ELEENRN RS
transactions (Note 24) (Hfzt24) - - - 689 - 689
Changes in shares held for B REET B E RS
share award scheme #H) - - (3,696) - - (3,696)
Vlesting of awarded shares BERDGRE - - 1,051 (70) 102 1,083
Lapse of share options BEARAE R - - - (214) 214 -
Total comprehensive income for FEEFENGEEE
the year - - - - 68,776 68,776
Dividends declared in respect of KEEDRERE
the current year (Note 12) BB ﬂ/fEJZ) - - - - (25,859) (25,859)
As at 31 December 2012 W-Z-—#4+-F=+-H 156,718 122,394 (15,031) 4,839 45,286 314,206
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25 BN % (&)

25 Capital and reserves (continued)

(b) Share capital (b) B
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEERSBITRAE
2012 2011
s —E——%
Number of Number of
shares Amounts shares Amounts
RHEEE x| [EGE - ¢E] )
in’000 HK$’'000 in'000 HK$'000
T B BT T TR BT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 & &EE#%£0.207T
(2011: HK$0.20) each (ZE——F B
0.207T ) BV @A 1,250,000 250,000 1,250,000 250,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ZER ' ©21TR
fully paid: g
As at 1 January n—A—H 782,546 156,509 778,606 155,721
Shares issued under share  1RIEFERRIEET2IZ41THY
option schemes f& 1 1,042 209 3,940 788
As at 31 December R+-—A=+—8 783,588 156,718 782,546 156,509

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends TR A A A BRI B RS K 3 AR

(ii)

as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Shares issued under share option schemes

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
1,042,000 (2011: 3,940,000) ordinary shares in the Company
at a consideration of HK$1,046,000 (2011: HK$3,769,000) of
which HK$209,000 (2011: HK$788,000) was credited to share
capital and the balance of HK$837,000 (2011: HK$2,981,000)
was credited to the share premium account. Capital reserve
of HK$108,000 (2011: HK$251,000) has been transferred
correspondingly to the share premium account in according
with policy set out in Note 1(p)(ii).

(ii)

B YEERARRAREG EREHE Kk
NE—F - IEEBRREARARHRTEES
BRSES -

RIEBRESERTRG

FR - BRERA AN 1,046,0007T
(ZZ——4% : B#3769,0007T) KK &
TERRAE - RE1,042,0000 (=% ——
F 1 3,940,0000%) AR B F @A - HAp A
209,000t (=& ——4 : ##788,0007T)
FEARRA - fRERER837,00000 (ZF ——
4 B162,981,0007T ) BIET AR R EER o
AR EAE108,0000( ZF——F « Bk
251,0007T) BARIEATEE1(p) (il PR SR AR FE
BB ERRER -
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25 Capital and reserves (continued)

(b) Share capital (continued)

(iii)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at end of
the reporting period:

25 BN % (&)

(b) BRA (%)

(iii)

IR E T AR KRB B R RAT SRS AR AV IR K

2012 2011

—E—_—F —E——F

Exercise price Number Number

Exercise period TR TEE L= EogE!

11 September 2002 to TR FNA+—HZE HK$0.90 - 161,000
11 September 2012 —E-ZFNA+—H 751£0.907T

22 September 2003 to —EE=FNAZF+ZHZE HK$0.90 105,000 105,000
30 November 2014 —Z-mE+—A=+H 10.907T

14 October 2005 to —ETRFTATHNEZR HK$1.25 5,991,733 6,474,319
13 October 2015 —Z-RF+A+=8 1,257

19 March 2007 to —EZHF=A+NEZE HK$1.42 3,815,615 3,932,113
18 March 2017 —E—tF=A+N\H 7BHE1.427T

14 April 2008 to T \FENA+TMNEZRE HK$1.01 2,229,090 3,340,112
13 April 2018 - N\FEA+=H BHE1.017T

12,141,438 14,012,544

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(c) RENHEERRAR

(i) Share premium (i) RHPRE
The application of the share premium account is governed by &1 s ERR B /B R BE I ) E 48B
Sections 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 1EETIRE ©

(ii) Capital reserve (i) ERGEHE
The capital reserve comprises the grant date fair value of EABERIEEETARRIEES WRERN
unexercised share options and awarded shares granted to B1aE1(p) i) 2 (i) LA B A7 A EERE 69 2 A M £
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with the ANE = RTIR PTRERR Y 18 AR T T (50 i IR J% 4%
accounting policy adopted for share based payments in Note BRI BERATF(E -
1(p)(ii) and (iii).

(i) Shares held for share award scheme (i) RRGEBTEFEHRG
The Shares held for Share Award Scheme is the consideration IRIBE A1 (p) (i) B ETEEE - Ak
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs By ET Bl A MR ARIER D BT EIEE
for purchase of shares under the Share Award Scheme, in ROHBERNRE - SEEAEEREEMNK
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 1(p)(iii). NG

(iv) Exchange reserve (iv) ERFEE

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 1(q).

X RREEEaREEINRMBIRRME
ERMEELERE - BRRED RSN
AF1(q)EVEETEREEHE »
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25 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v) Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale debt securities held at the end
of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in Note 1(i).

(d) Distributability of reserves

(e)

As at 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$45,286,000 (2011: HK$49,798,000). After the end of the
reporting period, the directors proposed a final dividend of HK 6.9
cents per ordinary share (2011: HK 6.1 cents per share), amounting
to HK$54,068,000 (2011: HK$47,735,000). This dividend has not
been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the
foreseeable future. The Group has no external borrowing at the end
of the reporting period.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed
with due regard to the capital management objectives of the Group.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

26 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risk arises in the

normal course of the Group’s business. These risks are limited by the

Group's financial management policies and practices described below.

(a)

Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables
and investments in debt securities. Management has a credit policy

in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

25 &

(c)

K fE (&)

EENEER AR (R)

) DPERFE
NP EFREEENREPRMFOAHHE
BEBESF A TERFESFE - TERER
NGO E s C-3E

(d) AIEDIREE

(e)

26 &

EARENAEXBBIET  FBLEE -

A

RIT——F+-A=1+—8  A#IEFEAR
AR A AR B 4ARE R 145,286,0007T (=
T——4& : B¥49,798,0007T) - RIMEH K2
% BERRERPREGREEECIBI(=
T——5F : GIR6. 1B - & 154,068,000
TT(=ZF——4 : B#¥47,735,0007T) ° W ER
WEPRIAERBEE -

EXRER
AEEEREANTIERRRRENEEFEL
EREES  ARIERAEE AN A & ARRZATE
HEE - ARERREHRILB|IMBEN
AREAZFEAEEAR  THRIREREAR
245 -
AR B REAEM B R R BRI I E AR
HEFTAR

REREERNFE

MEE
C FIERROMNERKR o ZEFRBE B AREEN T XH

OB S E IR R S AR AR o

(a)

FERE

AN B (5 B 2R A R R (B 5
0% EREDIA -EEREE - S
HEEEES -
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26 TRIEAREERAFEGE)

26 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERM(E)

When registering as a subscriber, a customer is automatically
assigned with a credit limit based on the amount of its deposit or
bank guarantee and is normally given credit periods ranging from
one day to one month. Credit terms offered by other companies of
the Group based on individual commercial terms negotiated with
customers. The amount of deposit is determined on a customer-by-
customer basis, depending on its usage of the Company’s services.
Generally, if a customer reaches or exceeds its credit limit before the
normal billing cycle, an ad hoc bill will be issued to the customers for
payment by bank direct debit. However, if a customer is in default of
payment for whatever reason, its account is automatically suspended
from operation until all outstanding charges have been fully settled.
For that reason, customers may also, and often do, place deposits
with the Company from time to time to cover their charges.

There is, however, no credit policy for the Company’s ad hoc
customers who are required to pay the relevant charges (including
service charges, service centre handling fees and Government fees)
in full when using the Company over-the-counter services.

The Company does not have a general provisioning policy in respect
of trade receivables. Specific trade receivables considered not
recoverable will be written-off.

Investments in debt securities are normally in liquid securities
quoted on a recognised stock exchange, issued by corporate with
sound credit standing (Note 18). Given their high credit standing,
management does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to
meet its obligations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the industry
or country in which the customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 2.1% (2011: 0.2%) and 36.2% (2011: 11.8%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have any
significant concentration of credit risk other than those arising from
investments in debt securities. The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the balance sheet. Except for the financial guarantee given by the
Company in respect of a revolving credit facility to an associate of the
Company as disclosed in Note 29, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in
Note 19.

EEFPELAAPE  ARESRETEFPNZE
HRTEREE  BHREPOE—EARFER
B EEHBENF-HEEATE - FEH
ETEMARMGE THEEMDENERARE
EFBEAINERNEEXGERME - ARFEREF
EAAARRBNAE  MATFESNEELRE
SH - —RME - WEFPELERENZEMATZEER
ABBAFNEERE  HERERES TR
RRE  EREBRTPURITEEN R AR
o R - EFEEMBHARE MR AIERR
FHaadEEEr  EEHREREZHHUN
Bl EREMEH  BEPEHE (FEEE) TH
AARAIFEARS  MEZREBRZA -

AT ARRUERBERHRLFLEERE - &
ERPANERARANBERRBE - 28N
FHRER(RERBE  RETLTEERBFK
#)-

AN B AR YRR R S — ARBHBBUR » 4R
REEWRE AR E R - & T LA -

AEENEBESRE —RBNRBAELRZ SR
HEEE  UYHEEFARINAREITHRE
EH(HF18) - EREBRAHFHABREEN
Ao EREYNRREARELF T EERT
Bff-

AEBEMAZNEERREEZEELOER
MR EMER S EBENITERERA
22 AREERRaSESETHBREZHER
REEHERNEFEERNRBAERES - PR
EHIR  2.1%(ZF——%F : 02%) K%36.2% (=
T——F 1 11.8% ) WEUIRREE D B AR
EENBRARERAARESHRE °

R|ERR - R TEGEFREMELNEER
BoN - AEBYBESEETHOERERR - EERA
BHBRSLECREEEERTREAVBEE
MREEZS BT 29 R B AN R gt E B
BRRMEREERBME LT BERI - A
SETERHREIMEOEGSTAREAZEER
[ HE LR

BRAEEREBEEREEMEKFIENEE
[RR ) — S B IREEEAR - RIS -
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26 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

(c)

All cash management of the Group, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and raising of loans, if needed, to
cover expected cash demands, are managed centrally by the
Company. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s current liabilities of
HK$252,547,000, including trade creditors, accounts payable and
other payables of HK$247,931,000 as indicated in Note 21, were
due to be repaid during the next financial year or repayable upon
demand. The Group will address the short-term liquidity requirement
inherent in this contractual maturity date with internal resources.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from investments
in fixed income debt securities (Note 18) and floating rate bank
balances, which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits by approximately HK$647,000 (2011:
HK$992,000). The fair value reserve in the consolidated equity
would have decreased/increased by approximately HK$3,451,000
(2011: HK$3,735,000) in response to the general increase/decrease
in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those fixed income debt
securities held by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In respect of
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
bank balances held by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same

basis for 2011 for cash flow interest rate risk.

26 TRIEAREERAFEGE)

(b) REBEEER

(c)

REENAERSEETIE(BER S RHRNEH
RERBRER(NMAFTR)ARNERRSFR)
BRARRFRER - REENBREEHER
BB AR BN E @ FHARE LG ER RN E
TR - BREEFEETHORSFEEN R
BERES  ARRTBHBEREES R HNHGE
FERA  UWENEEHERARDESHTLK -

RZE——F+-A=+—"8 AEENORH
& & & 7 % 252,547,000 7t ( 8 & A i 21 BT 7~
B FE S BR R - FE AT RRIE I H th JE A RIE B
247,931,0007T) + HZERN T — B B FE Nz
ERERE - AEEBRA LRI B ARTEIRE
HEBRHRBESE K -

R =@k

AN [ B ) o i X B R B L A B 7S RE
FHIRE (Ba218) RF BIRTTHES  HSAKH
FREZRNFENERRRIREREFN KRR

BRED

R-TE——F+-A=+—8  BEEERHH -
INFIREEES AT AS0EES - mATE EMmA
TRARERFTE  BLEEENRB G RR
B3 A R A K B 5 647,000 (=T ——
& 2 ##992,0007T) © R A RN QA TE R
BISERRELR R TRAmBLD, G NLEES
3,451,00070(=F——4 : &#3,735,00070) °

bPagRESFIEHAREN GRS RELS
MENR B E) - BURESMIRRMEE BN |MEH
REERE  VEBREHNAEAREMFEL
MG REREEE R A TERNERBROEE
WAEBES - HREARERBSHARATE
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26 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

(e)

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
available-for-sale debt securities denominated in United States
dollars and Renminbi, and investments in PRC incorporated entities.
Given the fact that the exchange rates of United States dollars and
Hong Kong dollars are currently pegged, management does not
expect that there will be any significant currency risk associated with
the investment in available-for-sale debt securities denominated
in United States dollars. The Group has not hedged the foreign
exchange exposure in relation to its investments in PRC incorporated
entities and Renminbi denominated debt securities.

Fair values

The amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
require disclosures relating to fair value measurements of financial
instruments across three levels of a “fair value hierarchy”. The
fair value of each financial instrument is categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

e Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments

e |evel 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active
markets for similar financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

e Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation
techniques in which any significant input is not based on
observable market data

At 31 December 2012, the available-for-sale debt securities held
by the Group are carried at their fair value (see Note 18). These
instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy described
above.

All other financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2012
and 2011.

26 TRIEAREERAFEGE

(d) FMEE B

(e)

NEEMINERBREZRAUETRARBE
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27 Commitments 27 &I
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREE
(i) Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2012 () RZZE—=—F+-A=1+—8  TARUH
not provided for in the financial statements amounted to HMERBHENE AR AE1,531,000L(=
HK$1,531,000 (2011: HK$470,000). They are mainly in T——4F : JF#E470,0007T) - EEBREANAK
respect of the Group’s platform hardware and software, EBMFEBELEMY  BIEEBELIAE
computer equipment and leasehold office premises MEEE -
improvements.
(i) As at 31 December 2012, the Group had an outstanding iy R-TB——F+-A=+—H KAEBEH
commitment of cash investment in JT& BRI E BRHEAL DRI HERBERFEERA
[RAE] (“SCNT”), a PRC joint venture, for the amount of A(TETR ) MERIGEREAARE
RMB1,225,000. 1,225,0007T °
(b) Operating leases (b) R&EHE
The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BRIENAHHECESHE  NARREMNNSZEDE
operating leases in respect of property rentals are payable as follows: e emEmT -
2012 2011
—B——F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Within one year —FR 495 947
More than one year but within five years —FRERFR 253 53
748 1,000
The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases. AEERBCLHAEHEBZEYE - HO—HBYM
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years, PR E2=F  WHAEEENR  ERESEN
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. R FTEIRR - AR T REsAElE -

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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28 Material related party transactions 28 EXBBALIRE
During the year, transactions with the following parties are considered as FA o REBBEL T ATETOZ S WA BB AL
related party transactions. R e
Name of party Relationship
REH BB &
Financial Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”) Shareholder of the Company up to 24 October 2012
MR RIRER (M BAERIREE D) AREIRE(EEZZE—F+A=+HEH)
Telstra Technology Services (Hong Kong) Limited (“TTS”) Associate
Telstra Technology Services (Hong Kong) Limited([TTS ) NS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these BT EMBRERE MM RBEOR S REHRIN - K&
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material related BN SHEIT TR ERBEBALRS -

party transactions:

(a) Recurring transactions (a) BEETHRS
2012 2011
—E2——F —EF——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Facilities management expenses B ENATTSH R
paid/payable to TTS EEB 8,950 9,396
Counter collection service charge A e R RIAERR
paid/payable to the Government* WofH R A B 7 2,166 2,324
ROCARS call centre service charge received/ U rE Uk B FFRIROCARS B 25 & 3 0
receivable from the Government? AR 660 1,446
# Recurring transactions with the Government during the 2012 is # REF—ZFEFRABERITAEEETHIR B EIWH
calculated and disclosed up to 24 October 2012. BER—LF A A=A AIF -
Prior to 25 October 2012, the Government held 95,673,000 shares, RIZZE—ZF+AZ+HBZA - BUFABIKF]
representing approximately 12.21% of the Company’s issued share AR EE % #E1$595,673,0000% 8% 10+ {h A QA
capital in the name of FSI. Accordingly, the Government was a BB ITARAAI12.21% St G AREEFE
substantial shareholder of the Group. Transactions between the AEER - AEEBRBFHESNM BRI REZEET
Group and the Government departments or agencies of FSI, other HWEZRNZ S (NEIEHRTERNER 2 BWIES
than those transactions that arise in the normal dealings between A it TANEIE - S EMEELANT
the Government and the Group (such as payments of taxes, leases, SIEREABEBALRS -

rates, etc), were considered to be related party transactions.
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28 EXEFBALRS (&)

28 Material related party transactions (continued)

(a) Recurring transactions (continued) (a) BREETHRS (&)

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group include:

0]

On 30 December 2008, the Company entered into a contract
with the Government to provide front-end GETS services in
relation to import and export declarations, dutiable commodities
permit, cargo manifests in respect of cargoes carried by air,
rail or water, Certificate of Origin and Production Notification
for a term of 7 years from 2010 to 2016 (“GETS Il Contract”).
Subject to the sole discretion of the Government, the GETS Il
Contract shall be extendable for one or more GETS services
with a period not more than two years. The Government paid
the Group a nominal price of HK$1 in return for the Group
performing the services in accordance with the terms and
conditions set out in the contract.

The GETS Il Contract included an arrangement whereby the
Group is required to collect Government fees and charges on
behalf of the Government in relation to certain trade-related
documents to which such agreement related and in respect
of which the Group provides GETS services. These fees
and charges collected from customers are paid over to the
Government within the next working day.

On 30 June 2009, the Company entered into an agreement
with the Government for the provision of front-end GETS service
in relation to the Textiles Trader Registration Scheme for a
term of 18 months from 1 January 2010 to 30 June 2011, for
a nominal price of HK$1 paid by the Government. Subject to
the sole discretion of the Government, the agreement shall
be further extendable for no more than 9 months. By a letter
of renewal dated 3 June 2011, the agreement was renewed
for a further 42 months from 1 July 2011 to 31 December
2014, for a nominal price of HK$1 paid by the Government.
The agreement may be renewed for a further period by the

Government and the Company on such terms and conditions
that the parties may agree in writing.

AEEDITUNBEREBALR S8

(M

T RNFETEAKEN - FE L O REE - &
R LTI EREEMNE  SESUKENE
YR« EMRREREEBRNE  REA
IHGETSIRIS([GETS 1K) - BIFZAE2
ERERERE - AHSGETS 1AW A — sk
ZIAGETSIRFH FEIER T RBIBRE o I
FIE Bh 7 S EAR AR 175 sk T8 I S R G B AT
RS - ASESZ BB LITHEENRE -

GETS l&WBE—A%ZY it - &AEEA
REBUT - GETS GRS R - WHZR
SERHGETSIRBME TH ZEXM
WEBF &R R E - (e8P RERAISHE
ARKE R T —ETIERERKMT -

RZZBTAFRA=+TH » NRAFREBF
RIALWE » Ut ARBR T —FTF —
A—Hz-Z—-——4%XA=1+HIBEAAA
WEN - SASEER T RIEMHATHRGETS
R MBS AOHEEREREE
It BREZEE2RMBRER I8 HE
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28 EXBFBALRS (&)

28 Material related party transactions (continued)

(a) Recurring transactions (continued) (a) BEETHXRS (E)

(ii)

(iii)

On 12 April 2002, the Company entered into an agreement with
TTS for the provision of system management services such as
computing services, system security and other related services
at HK$640,000 per month for an initial period of eight years.
Subsequently, on 16 January 2003, the Company entered
into a price adjustment agreement with TTS for the provision
of services at HK$652,000 per month commencing on 1
January 2004. The agreement was further extended for a 3-year
period, commencing on 6 September 2010 and expiring on
5 September 2013, with the fee adjusted to HK$550,000 per
month commencing on 6 September 2010.

On 10 December 2004, Digital Trade and Transportation
Network Limited (“DTTNCo”) entered into an agreement with
TTS for the provision of system management services such
as computing services, system security and other related
services at HK$248,000 per month for an initial period of
eight years commencing on 1 January 2005. With subsequent
adjustments, the monthly fee was adjusted to HK$208,000.
Upon completion of the overall Tradelink/DTTN migration in
mid 2010, Tradelink has taken up DTTNCo'’s obligations under
the signed maintenance agreement.

Commencing on 1 January 2012, the monthly fees payable
under the above agreements has been replaced by a single
monthly fee of HK$700,000 payable under the Tradelink
Agreement.

On 8 November 2004, Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited
entered into an agreement with TTS for the provision of data
centre environment management services at HK$37,000
per month for an initial period of five years commencing on
1 December 2004. Commencing on 1 December 2009, the
agreement was extended to 31 December 2010 and the fee
was adjusted to HK$47,000 per month. The agreement was
further extended to 31 December 2011 with fee adjusted to
HK$25,000 per month since 1 January 2011. Subject to the
right of either party to terminate the agreement, it shall continue
in force for successive terms of twelve months.

On 17 December 2008, the Company entered into the Road
Cargo System (“ROCARS”) Contract (“the Contract”) with the
Government pursuant to which the Company agreed to set up
a call centre and provide call services for the implementation
of the ROCARS of the Customs and Excise Department of the
Government. The Contract terms is five years commencing
2010. From 1 January 2012 to 24 October 2012, the Company
generated revenue of HK$660,000 for calls received (year
ended 31 December 2011: HK$1,446,000).

(ii)

(iii)

RZZTE_FMA+=H ' ARFHATTS
HRRHERXFATERBE(RIEEERE - BR
R REAABRARRSS ) FI 13 - HEVIZP
RENGF - RGERE AABE40,0007T
Hft RZZEZ=F—A+XB  ARQ7
HTTSEI M ERARRR - Bt - REE
BE-ZTNF-—A—BRAREZEGABE
652,0007C - HEpZEEEH=F  5=F
—ZEFEAARNARER BT —=FNA
HBER  BRRBEE T —TFNAX
AR E S A4%550,0007T °

RZZTNF+-A+AH - BHEBEZER
W BR AR ([DTTNCo ) EETTSHIR (&
FEERS (REBRRY ZRHRTRE
BB RRTS ) ST ik o BN T RF
—A—BRIAVSAEBNF  REEARE
A #B#248,0007T - &K ABHES
2080007 c R B —TEFRERD
58/ DITNRMREAHE  BHBAET
DTTNCoR B E I M#E B ZEE THET -

BT —F—A—H# RELOHEE
FEAWABRIREE S BIGEEMNHE—
A & #1700,0007T B

R-ZZTNF+—ANA » EFEBRES
FRA R BT TSER IR R EUR R O IR B E AR TS
I - N EENE+ - A—Bie
I ARAESF - RSB AT AE37,000
TL e REHHEER  BZTThF+=A
—BRAEN EZE-TEE+-_A=+—
BRI BRKERHZEES AEK47,000
L EiaBEERE—T——%F+ -4
=+—8 A@KEBEE-_Z———HF—H
M E G ABH25,0007T © HEEREE
W+ —EABE—EB®R SN FEE
AR IE e ©

RZZEZENF+_A++EH  ARRIHEK
fFeI BB EMER 25 ([ROCARS ) EH
(TB#]) - Bt - ARBIR BRI BHEEH
LML E BB EHIROCARSIEE
BREAP LIRS GRS —TFR
o AMRE -R-_T——F—-F—-HE—
T——F+A-1+WNAB  ARAHREESHE
=B EAT 5 By M a5 A 7S 660,000 7T (#f
E-T——F+-A=+—RAILFE  BE
1,446,0007T) °
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28 Material related party transactions (continued)

(a) Recurring transactions (continued)
(iv) On 22 September 2010, the Company entered into a contract

(b)

(c)

(v)

with the Government (as represented by the Postmaster
General) pursuant to which the Government agreed to provide
counter collection service at designated post offices to facilitate
traders without the capability to submit trade documentation to
the Government in electronic form to hand in trade declarations
in paper documents for data conversion and submission
(“Counter Collection Service Agreement”). According to the
Counter Collection Service Agreement, Tradelink agreed to
pay the Government a monthly service charge on the basis
of the number of paper documents processed, subject to
a guaranteed minimum, during the three-year term of the
Agreement. From 1 January 2012 to 24 October 2012,
Tradelink incurred HK$2,166,000 (year ended 31 December
2011: HK$2,324,000) to the Government for the counter
collection service.

During the period from 1 January 2011 to 24 October 2012,
Tradelink incurred HK$1,802,000 (year ended 31 December
2011: HK$119,000) mailing and courier charges to the
Postmaster General under the normal course of business.

Amounts due from/(to) related parties

As at 31 December 2012, there are no material amounts due from/
(to) the Government which are related to the activities transacted on
or before 24 October 2012.

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts

28 EXBFBALRS (&)

(a) BEETHXRZ(H)

(b)

(c)

(iv)

v)

RZT—TFNAZ+=A  AREEET
(RBEBBRERAR)GILEH < Eit - B
R ERIETE R E B U RT - 1%
BhimAEBR ﬁu@%ﬁﬁ RE ST
BANEZE  BHRARETEEER A
éﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁwwwﬁ #41) - 1B
FIERIREREEH  R=F6HNER - &
5 BRERIBAERA TS B BT
AE WEAIBERBEMRS - R=F
——F#—fF—HBZ2=Z——-"Ft+A=+mWm
A - Z 578 phHE AR W AR A% W m BT X
{7842,166,000L(BE=Z—F+=A
=+—HIEFE : B¥#2,324,0007T) ©

R—T——F—A—HBE=-Z—=-%+A
—+mA - E5Ep A EEKBEPERE
ERIRERBMAERNESBRER B
1,802,000 (HE T ——F+=A="+—
HIEFE  #8119,0000T) °

FEKL/(FE 1) BB SE A+ 5K TR
WZE-—ZF+ZA=+—8  WEER/ERN)
BRI ER—F——F+ A - +MAsk 2 ABETH
R HEENERFA -

IREBASHE
ZERAEHS (REEAAR AR TEERN

paid to the Company’s Executive Directors as disclosed in Note 9 NRIB(ZAZ9) RERE TREFREX MW
and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 10, is SIB(ZMFI0)) T -
as follows:
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Short-term employee benefits RHIRBER 12,953 16,809
Post-employment benefits RIFZEBIET 66 78
Equity compensation benefits e AR ERF 434 349
13,453 17,236

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 6(a)).

& @t AlEERAI(ZHE6@))




122

—

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited EZBETEZER A A

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R 3% MizE

29 Contingent liabilities 29 FBAEE

(a) In January 2003, the Group provided a bank guarantee amounting (@) RZTZT=F—F KAEERTTSERNEERE
to HK$1,170,000, in respect of a revolving credit facility granted EREEIRMEB1,170,000TTHISRI THER o ZIER
to TTS. The guarantee is a continuing security and shall not be BREEER  RERETEZEMNR - BRK
released or discharged until the expiration of six months after the 1718 BN E A B NME E SRR o
payment, discharge or satisfaction in full of the guaranteed liability.

(b) Pursuant to the terms of the GETS Il Contract, the Group has (b) 1RIEGETS 1A WIS - AEEPRZZBEITGETS Il
obtained a bank guarantee in the amount of HK$2,120,000 from a AHRBFRERE —RBTHRITERSE
bank as the guarantee to the Government for the due performance 2,120,000 T EBIER - SRITRRBEZXRSEH
of GETS Il Contract by the Group. The bank guarantee bears SRS (ZZT——F : 095%):TE - WIABE
commission rate of 1.5% (2011: 0.95%) per annum for each 2,120,000 F R IRREVEBIEIR - ZEEEER
renewal and is secured by a charge over deposit in the amount of REZE—=F+—A+HEBANMR -
HK$2,120,000. The facility is subject to review by 15 November
2013.

(c) Pursuant to the terms of the ROCARS contract, the Group has (c) MRIZEROCARSEXIMGH  AEBERZZREIT
obtained a performance bond in the amount of HK$570,000 from a ROCARSE AIMEFIR AR B —RIRFTTHIB AR
bank as the guarantee to the Government for the due performance of BB MB70,000TLEAER - BUREBEEELRS
ROCARS contract by the Group. The performance bond line facility FHEER1ISB(ZZT——F 1 0.95%):tE WA
bears commission rate of 1.5% (2011: 0.95%) per annum for each 570,000 T FE KA EAIRE - ZIEEH
renewal and is secured by a charge over deposit in the amount of EBR_ZE—=F+—A+HBRIR °
HK$570,000. The facility is subject to review by 15 November 2013.

(d) Pursuant to the terms of each of the Smart Warrant Card System (d) BEEHRZEEBRRE D REERELIMOEK -

contract and the Smart Cards contract, the Group has obtained two
bank guarantees in the amount of HK$445,000 and HK$82,000
respectively from a bank as the guarantee to the Government for
the due performance of the contracts by the Group. The bank
guarantees bear commission rate of 1.5% per annum for each
renewal and is secured by a charge over deposit in the amount of
HK$1,000,000 in total. The facility is subject to review at any time by
bank.

30 Non-adjusting events after the reporting period

AEERLERTEBRANABFRERE —
KSR 1T H W I8 R 17 Y5 R 75 W5 445,000 7T K & 15
82,000 LIEAHEIR - SRITHERBERSFMAE X
1.5%5HE - 7B A £ #% 1,000,000 7877 2R
VR - BRI THSBERIRET LI B EE -

30 HEBRRARNEIR

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK 6.9 cents per share (2011: HK 6.1 cents per share) for
the year ended 31 December 2012, amounting to HK$54,068,000 (2011:
HK$47,735,000). This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at
the end of the reporting period.

MBEEMRE  EFEWRBEEBE_T—Z—+=A
S+ —HULEFEREBREFEIBI(ZT——F -
BR6.178L) - & H%54,068,000( =T ——4F -
5 #547,735,0007T) © RIER SRR & HRI AR ER A
BfE -

31 LB F

Comparative figures 31

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current
year's presentation and to provide comparative amounts in respect of
items disclosed for the first time in 2012.

ETUBHRTFEERAE  UFAAFENZHRAR
Y- T —FEEERENEREHIEEE -
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32 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the annual
accounting period ended 31 December 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments and five new standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

R BE_F--F+-A=1t—-HLHFE

S HIRC BB R ERBIEET ~ #
HARBEUREENTE

BEAUBRETNELY  BEGHMAGEMGT S
BETRBEHFER - BRETRMEARBE-Z
—ZHE+ A=t HIEFERRER  TRARRARH
BT ERA - BT 7IRIAR LA EARR

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RTH B SREZRRN
BEHHIRERK

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities — (FHEMBRELE|YE 1255 — [ RE T

T 2 EE |

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) (BBETERNE275

(ZZ2——%)
HKAS 28, Investments in associates and (BBEFTER])E 285, —
joint ventures hEZIRE]

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle (=ZZhFZE-ZT——

Q7 FEACE)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(B BRELRNE 05 — A M BERK]

(BAENBRELERNDF 115 —[BE 25

(BB BREER)DFIIR - A FEE]

— B HHRK]

[MENERAE

FHREENBWSE

(BEMBRELERNFIN—TERTA

1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2015
—T-h¥—A—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements, but
additional disclosures may need to be made in the consolidated financial
statements.

AEER RS LA ET R A EEA RS EED
FE LS HNERERAZEET R ET G
HIREMBHRRERERTE r&ﬁzﬁﬁﬁ"?/\ﬁﬁ‘%iﬁ
RIEHREIMEE -
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2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—B—=F —T——fF —T-TF —TThEF —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT BT T BT BT
Results E-4
(year ended 31 December) (Bz2+=-A=+—H
ILFE)
Turnover B 232,383 206,176 216,091 199,225 232,605
Profit from operations Pyl 91,792 74,922 85,581 58,598 110,199
Share of results of associates — F{LEH& N T 245 2,973 5,841 (3,989) (2,037) (22,222)
Share of result of jointly FrG SRR FI EaE R4
controlled entity (391) - - - -
Profit before taxation FRASE AT A 94,374 80,763 81,592 56,561 87,977
Taxation 1 (14,197) (10,698) (12,333) (11,529) (16,850)
Profit for the year KF i 80,177 70,065 69,259 45,032 71,127
Attributable to: LA AT REL -
Equity shareholders of the RATRIERA A
Company 80,262 70,065 69,259 45111 71,115
Non-controlling interest Elauilyy (85) - - (79) 12
Profit for the year INEESHH 80,177 70,065 69,259 45,032 71,127
Assets and Liabilities EERAEE
(as at 31 December) (R+=—A=+—H)
Total non-current assets IFRBEELLTE 155,805 152,961 147,432 98,634 89,484
Total current assets MENEELETE 460,168 422,637 414,937 451,160 472,760
Total assets BEBRE 615,973 575,598 562,369 549,794 562,244
Total non-current liabilities EREBEsE (4,456) (4,429) (6,431) (2,977) (3,000)
Total current liabilities mEBERE (252,547) (230,363) (219,657) (223,963) (222,484)
Total liabilities BERE (257,003) (234,792) (226,088) (226,940) (225,484)

Net assets BEFE 358,970 340,806 336,281 322,854 336,760
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The Company encourages two-way communication with both its institutional
and individual investors. Extensive information about the Company’s activities
is provided in the Annual Report. There is regular communication with
institutional and individual investors. Enquiries from individuals on matters
relating to their shareholdings and the business of the Company are welcome
and are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Financial Calendar

Closure of Register of Members:

— to ascertain shareholders entitled to attend and
vote at the 2013 Annual General Meeting

7 t0 9 May 2013
(both days inclusive)

— to ascertain shareholders qualified for the final
dividend

16 to 20 May 2013
(both days inclusive)

2013 Annual General Meeting
Annual Dividend Payment Date

10 May 2013
On or about 27 May 2013

Listings
The Company’s shares have been listed on Main Board of The Stock of
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 28 October 2005.

Annual Report 2012
This Annual Report 2012, in both English and Chinese, is now available in
printed form and on the Company’s website at www.tradelink.com.hk.

Stock Code
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited — 00536

Registered Office

11/F & 12/F, Tower B
Regent Centre

63 Wo Yi Hop Road

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
Telephone: +852 2599 1600
Fax: +852 2506 0188

AR - ASBEL RIS RAAREE (e
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BRI RER -

B A
BERERNBPER
—NEEEREF - —=F —E-=F
BRBFERGUNE LERE FAERENA
PR (BHEEREMA)
—NEESFERZTERBREZ —E-=F
PR HEA+TXRAZE=+H
(BHEEEMA)
R oFRRBEAR —Z-=%HA+AH

FEREESR —z-=¢

BAZ R
e
ARFRHE-TTAF AT\ B REEEBARDH
ERAFER LT -

TE-CHFR
D =T — ZFFRAP ERAEEEDRIA - IRAIRAR
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Share Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: +852 2862 8628

Fax: +852 2865 0990

Investor Relations

Ms. HO Yee Ling, Sandra

Assistant Manager (Investor Relations and Corporate Communications)
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited

11/F & 12/F, Tower B, Regent Centre

63 Wo Yi Hop Road

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Telephone: +852 2161 4370

Fax: +852 2506 0188

Email: sandra.ho@tradelink.com.hk

Website

www.tradelink.com.hk

REBFELE
BRPRBESELARDA
BRET
Z2/FRER1835R
RN
17121712%1716%

B3 - +852 2862 8628
{#5 : +852 2865 0990

REEBRR
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ME A E635E
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EiE 1 +852 2161 4370

fEE : +852 2506 0188

EH : sandra.ho@tradelink.com.hk
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Board of Directors

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.

Executive Directors

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily (Chief Operations Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael
Dr. LEE Delman

Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAK Hubert

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P.

Mr. TSE Kam Keung

Audit Committee

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman)
Mr. CHAK Hubert

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P.

Mr. TSE Kam Keung

Remuneration Committee
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay (Chairman)
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Nomination Committee

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. (Chairman)
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Investment Committee
Mr. TSE Kam Keung (Chairman)
Mr. CHAK Hubert

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Dr. LEE Delman

Corporate Governance Committee
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman)
Mr. CHAK Hubert

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P.

Mr. TSE Kam Keung
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Company Secretary
Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred

Auditor
KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Principal Bankers
Dah Sing Bank, Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Registered Office

11/F & 12/F, Tower B
Regent Centre

63 Wo Yi Hop Road

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
Telephone: +852 2599 1600
Fax: +852 2506 0188

Share Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: +852 2862 8628

Fax: +852 2865 0990

In case of inconsistence between the English and Chinese versions, the English

version shall prevail to the extent of such inconsistency.
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Telephone: 2599 1600 Fax: 2506 0188
Corporate Website: www.tradelink.com.hk Business Portal: www.tradelink-ebiz.com
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